
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are
in any doubt about the contents of this document or as to what action you should take, you
are recommended to seek your own personal financial advice from an independent financial
adviser authorised and regulated under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as
amended) if you are resident in the United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser in the relevant jurisdiction.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred, or you sell or otherwise transfer, all of your Ordinary
Shares in Hummingbird Resources plc, please send this document together at once to the
purchaser or transferee or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through or by whom the sale or
transfer was or is effected, for onward delivery to the purchaser or transferee. If you have sold or
otherwise transferred part only of your holding of Ordinary Shares, please retain these documents
and consult the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected.

AIM is a market designed primarily for emerging or smaller companies to which a higher investment
risk tends to be attached than to larger or more established companies. AIM securities are not
admitted to the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority. A prospective investor should be
aware of the risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
careful consideration and, if appropriate, consultation with an independent financial adviser. Neither
the London Stock Exchange nor the Financial Conduct Authority has examined or approved the
contents of this document.

The Existing Ordinary Shares are admitted to trading on AIM. Application will be made to the
London Stock Exchange for the New Ordinary Shares to be admitted to trading on AIM. It is
expected that admission of the New Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM will become effective and
that dealings will commence upon completion of the transactions as outlined herein following
approval of the Resolutions at the General Meeting. The New Ordinary Shares will, on Admission,
rank pari passu in all respects with, and will rank in full for all dividends and other distributions
declared, made or paid in respect of, the Existing Ordinary Shares after the date of Admission.

This document should be read in its entirety and, in particular, your attention is drawn to
the section headed “Risk Factors” in Part 2 of this document.

The Directors, whose names are set out on page 9, accept responsibility for the information
contained in this document (including any expressions of opinion). To the best of the knowledge and
belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the
information contained in this document for which they accept responsibility is in accordance with the
facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Please note that Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders wishing to participate in the Open Offer must
complete and return their Application Form(s) with the appropriate remittance in accordance with the
instructions set out in this document and in the Application Form itself as soon as possible and in
any event by no later than 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024.

HUMMINGBIRD RESOURCES PLC
(Incorporated in England and Wales under number 05467327)

Notice of General Meeting with respect to the General Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on 10 January 2024

The approval of a Rule 9 Panel Waiver

Conditional Subscription for 156,510,035 new Ordinary Shares at 11.2625 pence per share
to raise US$22.2 million (approximately £17.6 million) (gross)

Open Offer of 35,515,679 new Ordinary Shares to Qualifying Shareholders at 11.2625 pence
per share to raise up to £4 million (gross)

A renewal of the Directors’ authority to allot new Ordinary Shares and
disapply pre-emption rights

Nominated Adviser
Strand Hanson Limited

This document should be read as a whole. Your attention is drawn to the letter from the
Chairman which recommends that you vote in favour of the Resolutions to be proposed at
the General Meeting.



Notice of a General Meeting of Hummingbird Resources plc to be held at the offices of Gowling
WLG (UK) LLP at 4 More London Riverside, London SE1 2AN at 1.00 p.m. on 10 January 2024 is
set out is set out in Part 9 of this document.

You will not (unless you request otherwise, as set out below) receive a hard copy form of proxy for
the General Meeting in the post. Instead, please register your proxy appointment and vote by proxy
electronically using the link www.signalshares.com. You will need to log into your Signal Shares
account, or register if you have not previously done so, to register you will need your Investor Code,
this is detailed on your share certificate or available from our Registrar, Link Group, whose contact
details are set out in the following paragraph.

If you need help with registering your proxy appointment and voting by proxy online, or wish to
receive a hard copy form of proxy, please contact our Registrar, Link Group, on Tel: 0371 664 0321
from the United Kingdom (UK) or +44 371 664 0321 from overseas or by post at Link Group,
Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL. Calls are charged at the standard
geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside the UK will be charged at the applicable
international rate. Lines are open between 9:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m., Monday to Friday (excluding
public holidays in England and Wales), or by email at shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk.

For CREST Members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service, please refer to Notes 5 to 7 of the notes to the Notice of General Meeting.

Copies of this document are available from the Company’s registered office from the date of this
document until the date of the General Meeting. This document will also be available for download
from the Company’s website, www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

The distribution of this document and (if applicable) Application Form in jurisdictions other
than the UK may be restricted by law and therefore persons into whose possession this
document comes should inform themselves about and observe any of those restrictions.
Any failure to comply with any of those restrictions may constitute a violation of the
securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

The Company and the Directors accept responsibility for the information contained in this document.
To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Company and the Directors (who have taken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this document is in
accordance with the facts and makes no omission likely to affect the import of such information.

The total consideration under the Open Offer shall not be more than £4 million in aggregate and so,
in accordance with section 85 of FSMA, the Open Offer does not require the issue of a prospectus
for the purposes of the Prospectus Regulation Rules. The Subscription Shares and the CIG
Subscription Shares are only available to qualified investors for the purposes of the Prospectus
Regulation Rules or otherwise in circumstances not resulting in an offer of transferable securities to
the public under section 102B of FSMA. Therefore none of the Subscription, the CIG Subscription
or the Open Offer constitute an offer to the public requiring an approved prospectus under section
85 of FSMA and accordingly this document does not constitute a prospectus for the purposes of
the Prospectus Regulation Rules and has not been pre-approved by the FCA pursuant to sections
85 and 87 of FSMA, the London Stock Exchange, any securities commission or any other authority
or regulatory body and has not been approved for the purposes of section 21 of FSMA. In addition,
this document does not constitute an admission document drawn up in accordance with the AIM
Rules. It is emphasised that no application is being made for the admission of the Existing Ordinary
Shares or the New Ordinary Shares to the Official List of the United Kingdom Listing Authority.

This document should be read in its entirety and, in particular, your attention is drawn to
the section headed “Risk Factors” in Part 2 of this document.

This document does not constitute or form part of any offer or invitation to buy, subscribe for, or sell
Ordinary Shares in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is unlawful. In particular, the
New Ordinary Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States Securities
Act of 1933 as amended (the “Securities Act”) or qualified by prospectus or the equivalent for sale
under the laws of any state of the United States of America or under the applicable laws of any of
Canada, Australia, the Republic of South Africa or Japan and, subject to certain exceptions, may
not be offered or sold in the United States of America or to any national, resident or citizen of
Canada, Australia, the Republic of South Africa or Japan.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation about the
Company and about the matters the subject of this document other than those contained in this
document. If any such information or representation is given or made then it must not be relied
upon as having been so authorised. The delivery of this document shall not imply that no change
has occurred in the Company’s affairs since the date of issue of this document or that the
information in this document is correct as at any time after the date of this document, save as shall
be required to be updated by law or regulation.

Strand Hanson Limited (Strand Hanson), which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom
by the FCA and is a member of the London Stock Exchange, is the Company’s nominated adviser
for the purposes of the AIM Rules. Strand Hanson is acting exclusively for the Company and will
not regard any other person (whether or not a recipient of this document) as a client and will not be
responsible to anyone other than the Company for providing the protections afforded to its clients
nor for providing advice in relation to the contents of this document or any other matter referred to
herein. Strand Hanson’s responsibilities as the Company’s nominated adviser under the AIM
Rules for Nominated Advisers are owed to the London Stock Exchange and not to any other person
in respect of their decision to acquire New Ordinary Shares in reliance on any part of this
document. Strand Hanson has not authorised the contents of this document for any purpose and no
liability whatsoever is accepted by Strand Hanson nor does it make any representation or warranty,
express or implied, as to the accuracy of any information or opinion contained in this document or
for the omission of any information. Strand Hanson expressly disclaims all and any responsibility or
liability whether arising in tort, contract or otherwise which it might otherwise have in respect of this
document.
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The release, publication or distribution of this document and the Application Form in or into,
jurisdictions other than the United Kingdom may be restricted by law and therefore persons into
whose possession this document comes who are not resident in the United Kingdom should inform
themselves about, and observe, any applicable restrictions. Shareholders who are in any doubt
regarding such matters should consult an appropriate independent adviser in the relevant jurisdiction
without delay. Any failure to comply with such restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities
laws of any such jurisdiction. In particular, this document may not be distributed, directly or
indirectly, in or into the United States of America, Canada, the Republic of South Africa, Australia or
Japan. Overseas Shareholders and any person (including, without limitation, nominees and
trustees), who have a contractual or other legal obligation to forward this document to a jurisdiction
outside the UK should seek appropriate advice before taking any action.

This document has been prepared for the purposes of complying with the AIM Rules and the
information disclosed may not be the same as that which would have been disclosed if this
document had been prepared in accordance with the laws or regulatory requirements of jurisdictions
outside the United Kingdom. The statements contained in this document are not to be construed as
legal, business, financial or tax advice.

This document includes “forward-looking statements” which include all statements other than
statements of historical facts, including, without limitation, those regarding the Group’s financial
position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations, the timing of
events and other expectations associated with the transactions discussed herein, expectations with
respect to the listing of securities of the Company to be issued in these transactions, the expected
use of proceeds, and/or any statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words
“targets”, “believes”, “expects”, “aims”, “intends”, “will”, “may”, “anticipates”, “would”, “could” or similar
expressions or negatives thereof. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other important factors beyond the Company’s control that could cause the
actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to be materially different from future
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements (see
the Risk Factors section herein and the risks outlined in other public disclosure documents filed by
the Company from time to time). Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous
assumptions regarding the Group’s present and future business strategies and the environment in
which the Group will operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only as at the
date of this document. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to
disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect
any change in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions
or circumstances on which any such statements are based unless required to do so by applicable
law or the AIM Rules.

In accordance with the AIM Rules, this document will be available on the Company’s website
(www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk) from the date of this document, free of charge, subject to
certain restrictions relating to persons in any jurisdiction where release, publication or distribution of
this document would constitute a violation of the securities law of such jurisdiction. Neither the
content of the Company’s website nor any website accessible by hyperlinks to or on the Company’s
website is incorporated in, or forms part of, this document.
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Each of the times and dates in the below is indicative only and may be subject to change by the
Company, in which event details of the new times and dates will be notified to shareholders by
announcement through a Regulatory Information Service.

Record Date for entitlements under the Open Offer 6.00 p.m. on
19 December 2023

Voting Record Date for attendance and voting at the General Meeting 6.00 p.m. on
9 January 2024

Publication of this Circular and (to Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders
only) the Application Form

21 December 2023

Ex-entitlement Date for the Open Offer 8.00 a.m. on
21 December 2023

Open Offer Entitlements and Excess CREST Open Offer Entitlements
credited to stock accounts of Qualifying CREST Shareholders in
CREST

As soon as practical
after 8.00 a.m. on

22 December 2023

Latest recommended time and date for requesting withdrawal of Open
Offer Entitlements and Excess CREST Open Offer Entitlements from
CREST

4.30 p.m. on
3 January 2024

Latest time and date for depositing Open Offer Entitlements and
Excess CREST Open Offer Entitlements into CREST

3.00 p.m. on
4 January 2024

Latest time and date for splitting Application Forms (to satisfy bona
fide market claims only)

3.00 p.m. on
5 January 2024

Latest time and date for receipt of completed Forms of Proxy and
receipt of electronic proxy appointments via the CREST system

1.00 p.m. on
8 January 2024

Latest time and date for receipt of the completed Application Form and
appropriate payment in respect of Open Offer Shares or settlement of
relevant CREST instruction

11.00 a.m. on
9 January 2024

Announcement of result of Open Offer 10 January 2024

General Meeting 1.00 p.m. on
10 January 2024

Announcement of results of General Meeting 10 January 2024

Admission and commencement of dealings in the New Ordinary
Shares on AIM

from 8.00 a.m. on
11 January 2024

CREST accounts expected to be credited for the New Ordinary Shares from 8.00 a.m. on
11 January 2024

Latest date for posting of share certificates for the New Ordinary
Shares in certificated form (if applicable)

by 18 January 2024

Certain of the events in the above timetable are conditional upon, inter alia, the approval of
the Resolutions to be proposed at the General Meeting.

All references to time and dates in this document are to time and dates in London.
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STATISTICS OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AND OPEN OFFER

Issue Price 11.2625 pence

Number of Existing Ordinary Shares in issue as at the date of this
document

640,495,504

Percentage of Existing Ordinary Shares held by CIG as at the Latest
Practicable Date

29.999 per cent.

Number of Second Tranche Subscription Shares** 13,987,560

Number of CIG Second Tranche Shares** 142,522,475

Maximum number of Open Offer Shares being offered pursuant to the
Open Offer**

35,515,679

Number of New Ordinary Shares* 192,025,714

Enlarged Share Capital* 832,521,218

Market capitalisation of the Enlarged Share Capital at the Issue Price* c. £93.8 million

Maximum percentage of the Enlarged Share Capital represented by
the CIG Subscription Shares***

42.0 per cent.

Percentage of the Enlarged Share Capital represented by the New
Ordinary Shares**

23.1 per cent.

Maximum proceeds of the Open Offer* c. £4,000,000

Estimated gross proceeds of the Placement (inclusive of the proceeds
of the First Tranche Subscription and the CIG First Tranche
Subscription, but exclusive of any funds raised pursuant to the Open
Offer)

c. $27,684,000

ISIN of the Existing Ordinary Shares GB00B60BWY28

ISIN of the Open Offer Shares: Open Offer Entitlement GB00BP2F2566

ISIN of the Open Offer Shares: Excess CREST Open Offer Entitlement GB00BP2F2673

—————
* Assuming that the Open Offer is fully subscribed
** Assuming that the Resolutions are passed at the General Meeting
*** Assuming that the Resolutions are passed at the General Meeting and there is no uptake under the Open Offer

The exchange rate used throughout this document for converting US dollars to pounds sterling is
0.7937
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING

Notice is given that a General Meeting of the Shareholders will be held at the offices of Gowling
WLG (UK) LLP 4 More London Riverside, London SE1 2AN at 1.00 p.m. on 10 January 2024.

Whether or not you propose to attend the General Meeting, Shareholders are strongly
encouraged to appoint the Chairman of the General Meeting as their proxy with directions
as to how to cast their vote on the Resolutions proposed. Please refer to the detailed
Notes contained in the Notice of General Meeting.

The Voting Record Time (being the date and time that persons eligible to vote at the General
Meeting are registered Shareholders) is 6.00 p.m. on 09 January 2024.

You will not (unless you request otherwise, as set out below) receive a hard copy form of proxy for
the General Meeting in the post. Instead, please register your proxy appointment and vote by proxy
electronically using the link www.signalshares.com. You will need to log into your Signal Shares
account, or register if you have not previously done so, to register you will need your Investor Code,
this is detailed on your share certificate or available from our Registrar, Link Group, whose contact
details are set out in the following paragraph.

If you need help with registering your proxy appointment and voting by proxy online, or wish to
receive a hard copy form of proxy, please contact our Registrar, Link Group, on Tel: 0371 664 0321
from the United Kingdom (UK) or +44 371 664 0321 from overseas or by post at Link Group,
Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL. Calls are charged at the standard
geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside the UK will be charged at the applicable
international rate. Lines are open between 9:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m., Monday to Friday (excluding
public holidays in England and Wales), or by email at shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk.

For CREST Members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service, please refer to Notes 5 to 7 of the notes to the Notice of General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS, COMPANY SECRETARY AND ADVISERS

Directors Dan Betts (Interim Executive Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer)
Thomas Hill (Finance Director)
Stephen Betts (Non-Executive Director)
David Straker-Smith (Non-Executive Director)
Attie Roux (Non-Executive Director)
Ernie Nutter (Non-Executive Director)

Company Secretary Tracey Fung

Registered Office 49-63 Spencer Street
Hockley
Birmingham
West Midlands
B18 6DE

Nominated Adviser Strand Hanson Limited
26 Mount Row
London
W1K 3SQ

Legal Advisers to the Company Gowling WLG (UK) LLP
4 More London Riverside
London
SE1 2AU

Registrars Link Group
Central Square
29 Wellington Street
Leeds
LS1 4DL

Receiving Agent Link Group, Corporate Actions
Central Square
29 Wellington Street
Leeds
LS1 4DL
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DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this document unless the context otherwise requires:

2023 AGM the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June
2023

2023 Authorities the shareholder authorities granted by resolutions 4 and 5 as set
out in the notice of the 2023 AGM

Act the Companies Act 2006 (as amended)

acting in concert has the meaning attributed to it in the Takeover Code

Admission admission to trading on AIM of the New Ordinary Shares
becoming effective in accordance with the AIM Rules

AIM the AIM market operated by the London Stock Exchange

AIM Rules the AIM Rules for Companies published by the London Stock
Exchange from time to time

Application Form the application form enclosed with this document on which
Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders may apply for Open Offer
Shares under the Open Offer

Articles the articles of association of the Company as at the date of this
document

Board or Directors the board of directors of the Company from time to time

borrowed or lent in the context of the Takeover Code, includes for these purposes
any financial collateral arrangement of the kind referred to in
Note 4 on Rule 4.6 of the Takeover Code, but excludes any
borrowed shares which have either been on-lent or sold

certificated or in certificated
form

an Ordinary Share recorded on the Company’s share register as
being held in certificated form (namely, not in CREST)

Chairman the Chairman of the Board from time to time

CIG CIG SA, an investment company registered in the Trade and
Personal Property Credit Register of Burkina Faso with registered
number BF OUA 2019 B 2606, and which is controlled by the
same principal as the Company’s primary lending bank

CIG Announcement RNS Number 0128W released by the Company on 7 December
2023 relating to, inter alia, the CIG Subscription

CIG First Tranche Shares 35,057,991 of the CIG Subscription Shares

CIG First Tranche Subscription the unconditional subscription for the CIG First Tranche Shares at
the Issue Price

CIG Resolutions those Resolutions numbered 1 and 2 in the Notice of General
Meeting

CIG Second Tranche Shares 142,522,475 of the CIG Subscription Shares

CIG Second Tranche
Subscription

the conditional subscription for the CIG Second Tranche Shares at
the Issue Price

CIG Subscription the subscription by CIG for the CIG Subscription Shares at the
Issue Price pursuant to the CIG Subscription Agreement

CIG Subscription Agreement the agreement dated 6 December 2023 between the Company
(1) and CIG (2) in respect of the CIG Subscription

CIG Subscription Shares 177,580,466 new Ordinary Shares

Company Hummingbird Resources plc, a company registered in England
and Wales with Company number 05467327
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connected persons in the context of the Takeover Code, means in relation to a
Director, those persons whose interests in Ordinary Shares the
Director would be required to disclose pursuant to Part 22 of the
Companies Act 2006 and related regulations and includes any
spouse, civil partner, infants (including step children), relevant
trusts and any company in which a director holds at least 20 per
cent. of its voting capital

Coris Bank Coris Bank International (Burkina Faso)

Coris Holdings Coris Holdings SA, a 63.61 per cent. shareholder in Coris Bank

CREST the relevant system (as defined in the CREST Regulations) in
respect of which Euroclear is the operator (as defined in those
regulations)

CREST Manual the rules governing the operation of CREST, as published by
Euroclear

CREST member a person who has been admitted by Euroclear as a system-
member (as defined in the CREST Regulations)

CREST participant a person who is, in relation to CREST, a system participant (as
defined in the CREST Regulations)

CREST member account ID the identification code or number attached to a member account in
CREST

CREST participant ID shall have the meaning given in the CREST Manual

CREST payment shall have the meaning given in the CREST Manual

CREST Regulations the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (S.I. 2001 No,
3755) (as amended)

CREST sponsor a CREST participant admitted to CREST as a CREST sponsor

CREST sponsored member a CREST member admitted to CREST as a sponsored member
(which includes all CREST Personal Members)

dealing or dealt in the context of the Takeover Code, includes:

(a) acquiring or disposing of relevant securities, of the right
(whether conditional or absolute) to exercise or direct the
exercise of the voting rights attaching to relevant securities,
or of general control of relevant securities;

(b) taking, granting, acquiring, disposing of, entering into,
closing out, terminating, exercising (by either party) or
varying an option (including a traded option contract) in
respect of any relevant securities;

(c) subscribing or agreeing to subscribe for relevant securities;

(d) exercising or converting, whether in respect of new or
existing relevant securities, any securities carrying
conversion or subscription rights;

(e) acquiring, disposing of, entering into, closing out, exercising
(by either party) of any rights under, or varying, a derivative
referenced, directly or indirectly, to securities;

(f) entering into, terminating or varying the terms of any
agreement to purchase or sell securities;

(g) redeeming or purchasing, or taking or exercising an option
over, any of its own relevant securities by the offeree
company or an offeror; and
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(h) any other action resulting, or which may result, in an increase
or decrease in the number of relevant securities in which a
person is interested or in respect of which he has a short
position

derivatives include any financial product whose value in whole or in part is
determined directly or indirectly by reference to the price of an
underlying security

Enlarged Share Capital the 832,521,218 Ordinary Shares in issue following the issue
allotment and admission to trading of the New Ordinary Shares,
assuming full subscription for the Open Offer Shares

Euroclear Euroclear UK & International Limited, the operator of CREST

Excess Application Facility the arrangement pursuant to which Qualifying Shareholders may
apply for additional Open Offer Shares in excess of their Open
Offer Entitlement in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Open Offer

Excess CREST Open Offer
Entitlement

in respect of each Qualifying CREST Shareholder, their
entitlement (in addition to their Open Offer Entitlement) to apply
for Open Offer Shares pursuant to the Excess Application Facility,
which is conditional on them taking up their Open Offer
Entitlement in full

Excess Entitlement Open Offer Shares in excess of the basic Open Offer Entitlement
(but not in excess of the total number of Open Offer Shares)

Excess Shares Ordinary Shares applied for by Qualifying Shareholders under the
Excess Application Facility

Ex-entitlement Date the date on which the Existing Ordinary Shares are marked “ex”
for entitlement under the Open Offer, being 8.00 a.m. on
21 December 2024

Existing Ordinary Shares 640,495,504 Ordinary Shares in issue as at the date of this
document

FCA the Financial Conduct Authority

Financial Promotion Order the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial
Promotion) Order 2005 (as amended)

First Tranche Subscription the unconditional subscription for the First Tranche Subscription
Shares

First Tranche Subscription
Shares

3,518,814 of the Subscription Shares

Form of Proxy the form of proxy for use in connection with the General Meeting

FSMA the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as amended)

General Meeting the general meeting of the Company to be held at the offices of
Gowling WLG (UK) LLP at 4 More London Riverside,
London SE1 2AN at 1.00 p.m. on 10 January 2024, or any
adjournment thereof, notice of which is set out at the end of this
document

General Resolutions those Resolutions numbered 7 and 8 in the Notice of General
Meeting

Group together the Company and its subsidiary undertakings

Independent Directors all of the Directors, with the exception of Ernie Nutter, who is
participating in the Second Tranche Subscription

Independent Shareholders all of the Shareholders, with the exception of CIG
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interest in the context of the Takeover Code, a person having an interest in
relevant securities includes where a person

(a) owns securities;

(b) has the right (whether conditional or absolute) to exercise or
direct the exercise of the voting rights attaching to securities
or has general control of them;

(c) by virtue of any agreement to purchase, option or derivative,
has the right or option to acquire securities or call for their
delivery or is under an obligation to take delivery of them,
whether the right, option or obligation is conditional or
absolute and whether it is in the money or otherwise; or

(d) is party to any derivative whose value is determined by
reference to the prices of securities and which results, or
may result, in his having a long position in them

Irrevocable Undertakings the irrevocable undertaking from CIG and each of the Directors as
described in paragraph 6.1 of Part 6

ISIN International Securities Identification Number

Issue Price 11.2625 pence per New Ordinary Share

Latest Practicable Date 20 December 2023 being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this document

London Stock Exchange London Stock Exchange plc

New Ordinary Shares the Second Tranche Subscription Shares, the CIG Second
Tranche Shares and the Open Offer Shares

Notice of General Meeting the notice of the General Meeting set out at the end of this
document

Open Offer the conditional invitation made to Qualifying Shareholders to apply
to subscribe for Open Offer Shares at the Issue Price on the terms
and subject to the conditions set out in Part 3 (Terms and
Conditions of the Open Offer) of this document and, where
relevant, in the Application Form

Open Offer Entitlement the pro rata entitlement of a Qualifying Shareholder, pursuant to
the Open Offer, to subscribe for 1 Open Offer Share for every
12.525 Existing Ordinary Shares registered in their name as at the
Record Date

Open Offer Shares up to 35,515,679 new Ordinary Shares conditionally offered to
Qualifying Shareholders pursuant to the Open Offer

Official List the Official List of the FCA

Ordinary Shares ordinary shares of £0.01 each in the capital of the Company

Overseas Shareholders Shareholders with registered addresses, or who are citizens or
residents of, or incorporated in, countries outside of the United
Kingdom

Placement together the Subscription and the CIG Subscription (but, for the
avoidance of doubt, excluding the Open Offer)

Qualifying CREST Shareholders Qualifying Shareholders holding Existing Ordinary Shares in a
CREST account

Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders

Qualifying Shareholders holding Existing Ordinary Shares in
certificated form

Qualifying Shareholders subject to any restrictions imposed on Overseas Shareholders,
holders of Existing Ordinary Shares whose names appear on the
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register of members of the Company on the Record Date as
holders of Existing Ordinary Shares and who are eligible to be
offered Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer in accordance
with the terms and conditions set out in this document and the
Application Form and for the avoidance of doubt the Open Offer is
not being made to (i) persons in Restricted Jurisdictions; or
(ii) CIG; or (iii) any subscribers under the First Tranche
Subscription.

Proposals the proposals being the issue of the Second Tranche Subscription
Shares, the CIG Second Tranche Shares and the Open Offer
Shares

Prospectus Rules the prospectus rules published by the FCA pursuant to section
73A of FSMA (as amended from time to time)

Prospectus Regulation EU Regulation 2017/1129 (which forms part of UK domestic law
pursuant to the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018) on the
requirements for a prospectus to be published when securities are
offered to the public or admitted to trading

Receiving Agents Link Group, Corporate Actions, Central Square, 29 Wellington
Street, Leeds LS1 4DL

Record Date 6.00 p.m. on 19 December 2023, being the record date for the
purposes of the Open Offer

Registrars Link Group, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL

Relevant Securities (a) shares in the Company other than shares allotted pursuant
to:

(i) an employee share scheme (as defined by section
1166 of the Act); or

(ii) a right to subscribe for shares in the Company where
the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant
Security; or

(iii) a right to convert securities into shares in the Company
where the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant
Security.

(b) any right to subscribe for or to convert any security into
shares in the Company other than rights to subscribe for or
convert any security into shares allotted pursuant to an
employee share scheme (as defined by section 1166 of the
Act). References to the allotment of Relevant Securities
include the grant of such rights.

Resolutions the resolutions set out in the Notice of General Meeting

Restricted Jurisdictions the United States of America, Australia, Canada, Japan, the
Republic of South Africa and any other jurisdiction where the
extension or availability of the Open Offer would breach any
applicable law

Rule 9 Rule 9 of the Takeover Code

Rule 9 Panel Waiver the waiver granted by the Takeover Panel, subject to approval of
the Independent Shareholders, of the obligation on CIG to make a
mandatory offer to Shareholders for the Ordinary Shares not
owned by CIG upon completion of the issue of the CIG Second
Tranche Shares which would otherwise arise under Rule 9

Rule 9 Waiver Resolution Resolution 9 as set out in the Notice of General Meeting
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Second Tranche Subscription
Shares

13,987,560 of the Subscription Shares

Second Tranche Subscription the conditional subscription by subscribers other than CIG for the
Second Tranche Subscription Shares at the Issue Price

Shareholders holders of Ordinary Shares

short position in the context of the Takeover Code, means any short position
(whether conditional or absolute and whether in the money or
otherwise) including any short position under a derivative, any
agreement to sell or any delivery obligation or right to require
another person to purchase or take delivery

Subscription the direct subscription with the Company by certain subscribers,
other than CIG, for the Subscription Shares at the Issue Price

Subscription Shares together the First Tranche Subscription Shares and the Second
Subscription Shares

uncertificated or uncertificated
form

recorded on a register of securities maintained by Euroclear in
accordance with the CREST Regulations as being in
uncertificated form in CREST and title to which, by virtue of the
CREST Regulations, may be transferred by means of CREST

Takeover Code the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers

Takeover Panel the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers

UK or United Kingdom the United Kingdom of England, Scotland, Wales and Northern
Ireland

US or United States the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any
state of the United States of America and the District of Columbia

US Securities Act the US Securities Act of 1933 (as amended)

VWAP volume weighted average price

£ and p and GBP and pence the legal tender of the United Kingdom from time to time

US$ or $ US dollars being the legal tender of the United States from time to
time

Voting Record Time the time and date on which Shareholders must be on the
Company’s register of members in order to be able to attend
and vote at the General Meeting, being 6.00 p.m. on 9 January
2024
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PART 1

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

of

HUMMINGBIRD RESOURCES PLC

(incorporated in England & Wales with registration number 05467327)

Directors: Registered Office:
Dan Betts (Interim Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Thomas Hill (Finance Director)
Stephen Betts (Non-Executive Director)
David Straker-Smith (Non-Executive Director)
Attie Roux (Non-Executive Director)
Ernie Nutter (Non-Executive Director)

49-63 Spencer Street
Hockley

Birmingham
West Midlands

B18 6DE

21 December 2023

To the holders of Ordinary Shares and, for information only, to the holders of share options and
warrants

Dear Shareholder

Notice of General Meeting with respect to the General Meeting of Shareholders to be held
on 10 January 2024

The approval of a Rule 9 Panel Waiver

Conditional Subscription for 156,510,035 new Ordinary Shares at 11.2625 pence per share
to raise US$22.2 million (approximately £17.6 million (gross)

Open Offer of up to 35,515,679 new Ordinary Shares to Qualifying Shareholders at
11.2625 pence per share to raise up to £4 million (gross)

A renewal of the Directors’ authority to allot new Ordinary Shares and
disapply pre-emption rights

1. INTRODUCTION
On 7 December, the Company announced that it is undertaking an equity placement of up to
approximately US$30 million, subject to, inter alia, shareholder approval, comprised of a partially
conditional US$25 million investment by CIG and up to US$5 million from other investors. The
Placement is split across two tranches with the following confirmed figures in respect of the second
tranche:

• A firm first tranche of US$5.5 million, made pursuant to the 2023 Authorities, which involved
the issue of the CIG First Tranche Shares (which has resulted in a CIG holding of 29.999 per
cent. in the Company, as at the Latest Practicable Date) and the First Tranche Subscription
Shares and;

• A conditional second tranche, subject to, inter alia, shareholder approval, of approximately
US$22.2 million, which involves the issue of the CIG Second Tranche Shares (which,
dependant on the level of acceptances under of the Open Offer will result in CIG establishing
a holding of between 40.2 per cent. and 42.0 per cent. in the Company) and the issue of the
Second Tranche Subscription Shares. As part of the Second Tranche Subscription, Ernie
Nutter, director of the Company, is conditionally subscribing for 6,993,780 Subscription
Shares.

In addition, the Company is offering Shareholders the opportunity to subscribe for new Ordinary
Shares at the Issue Price through the Open Offer, details of which are set out in this document.

The Issue Price is 11.2625 pence per new Ordinary Share.
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CIG is subscribing for the CIG Second Tranche Shares subject to, inter alia, the granting of a
Rule 9 Panel Waiver, to be approved by the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution, of the obligations that would
otherwise fall upon CIG pursuant to Rule 9 of The Takeover Code to make an offer for the entire
issued share capital of the Company as a result of the potential issue of the CIG Second Tranche
Shares to CIG, which will lead to its interest in the Company increasing to over 30 per cent, to
between 40.2 per cent. and 42.0 per cent. dependent on the level of acceptances for the Open
Offer. Further details on the Rule 9 Waiver are set out in Part 5 of this document.

The Panel has agreed to waive the obligation on CIG to make a general offer that would otherwise
arise as referred to above, subject to the approval by the Independent Shareholders of the Rule 9
Waiver Resolution on a poll. Conditional upon the Resolutions being passed at the General Meeting
it is expected that the Second Tranche Subscription Shares and CIG Second Tranche Shares will
be admitted to trading on AIM on 11 January 2024.

The Open Offer provides Qualifying Shareholders (other than CIG and the subscriber under the
First Tranche Subscription) with an opportunity to participate in the proposed issue of the new
Ordinary Shares at the Issue Price.

The Company considers it important that, where reasonably practicable, Shareholders have an
opportunity to participate in its equity placements. To that end, the Board is providing Qualifying
Shareholders with the opportunity to subscribe for the Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer at
the Issue Price. In connection with the Open Offer, the Company will allot (at the Board’s discretion
and conditional on Admission) up to 35,516,679 Open Offer Shares and will make an
announcement in due course once the total number of Open Offer Shares subscribed for is known.
The aggregate maximum subscription under the Open Offer is capped at £4 million and so will be
exempt from the requirement to publish a prospectus pursuant to the Prospectus Rules and/or the
Prospectus Regulation Rules.

The Company has called the General Meeting inter alia in order to put to Shareholders the
resolutions required to grant (i) the authority to issue and allot the CIG Second Tranche Shares, the
Second Tranche Subscription Shares and the Open Offer Shares and (ii) approve the Rule 9 Panel
Waiver. If the Resolutions are not approved the issue of the CIG Second Tranche Shares, the
Second Tranche Subscription Shares and the Open Offer Shares will not proceed and the Company
will not receive any funds from the associated issue of these new Ordinary Shares. If the Rule 9
Waiver Resolution is not approved, but the other Resolutions are approved, the Second Tranche
Subscription and the Open Offer, which are conditional on the completion of the CIG Second
Tranche Subscription will not proceed and the CIG Second Tranche Subscription will not proceed.

Information on the Placement and Open Offer more generally is set out in this Part 1 of this
document.

2. ISSUE PRICE
The Issue Price represents approximately a 2 per cent premium to volume weighted average price
of the Ordinary Shares for the 30 day period ending on 6 December 2023, being the last
practicable day prior to the announcement of, inter alia, the CIG Subscription.

3. USE OF FUNDS
The proceeds of the Placement and the Open Offer (assuming that the Open Offer is fully
subscribed), will be US$32.7 million (approximately £26.0 million). The Company will allocate the
net proceeds to strengthen the balance sheet of the business and advance multiple growth
initiatives as part of the Company’s growth strategy. These initiatives encompass exploration
activities at both the Yanfolila and Kouroussa Gold Mines, as well as maximising the value of the
Dugbe Gold Project.

Hummingbird intends to utilise the proceeds of the Placement and Open Offer as follows:

• Exploration Activities: c.US$5 million of the funds will be directed towards increased
exploration activities at the Yanfolila and Kouroussa Gold Mines. The Company’s exploration
team has developed a comprehensive exploration plan from FY-2024 onwards, focused on
high-probability targets aimed at increasing Resources to Reserves for the Group, thereby
extending the Life of Mine at both operating assets.
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• Dugbe Gold Project Advancement: c.US$2 million of the proceeds will be dedicated to
progressing the Dugbe Gold Project in Liberia, bringing this highly valuable asset closer to
production. The funds will be used to optimise the 2022 Definitive Feasibility Study through
FY-2024 and further progress the Project. Hummingbird and Pasofino Gold Limited have
identified several opportunities to maximise the value of Dugbe and reduce the overall project
capex profile, including the optimisation of power usage, improvements to the metallurgical
recovery rates and additional exploration activities.

• Balance Sheet Strengthening: The remainder of the proceeds will be used to strengthen the
Company’s balance sheet through deleveraging and operational initiatives. The funds will be
allocated to provide additional capital support for the Group as it completes operational
initiatives at Yanfolila including, the Komana East Underground operation, and the ramp up of
Kouroussa to commercial production in early FY-2024, as well as supporting the deleveraging
of the balance sheet.

The New Ordinary Shares will, when issued, rank pari passu in all respects with each other and the
Existing Ordinary Shares, including the right to receive dividends and other distributions declared
following Admission.

4. CIG SUBSCRIPTION
Pursuant to the CIG Subscription Agreement, CIG has been issued 35,057,991 CIG First Tranche
Shares and has conditionally subscribed for a further 142,522,475 CIG Second Tranche Shares,
subject to, inter alia, shareholder approval. Assuming shareholder approval is received, CIG will be
interested in a total of 334,665,274 Ordinary Shares and, dependent on the level of acceptances
under the Open Offer, will have a holding of between 40.2 per cent. and 42.0 per cent. in the
Enlarged Share Capital.

The terms of the CIG Subscription Agreement include:

• An undertaking by CIG that it will not (save in limited circumstances) dispose of the CIG First
Tranche Shares for a period of 12 months from the date of their admission to trading on AIM
or the CIG Second Tranche Shares for 12 months from the date of Admission; and

• The grant to CIG of a pre-emption right in relation to further equity issued by the Company
while it holds 20 per cent. or more of the Ordinary Shares.

As noted in the Company’s 7 February 2023 announcement, CIG is party to a relationship
agreement with the Company and the Company’s nominated adviser, Strand Hanson Limited, which
imposes certain obligations on CIG in its position as a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
AIM Rules) in the Company to ensure that the Company will at all times be capable of carrying on
its business independently of CIG and the members of its group. The relationship agreement
remains in force for so long as CIG’s holding remains at 10 per cent. or above of the Company’s
issued share capital. Under the terms of the CIG Subscription Agreement, CIG has also agreed not
to make an offer for the Company without the recommendation of the Board, for so long as its
holding is at 15 per cent. or more of the Company’s issued share capital, subject to limited
exceptions.

CIG intends to finance the CIG Subscription through internal cash resources.

5. RULE 9 PANEL WAIVER
The Company requires a waiver granted by the Takeover Panel, pursuant to Rule 9 of the
Takeover Code. The Company will also require Independent Shareholder approval to permit
the issue of the CIG Second Tranche Shares, which would, if such new Ordinary Shares
were issued, result in an increase in CIG’s shareholdings to more than 30 per cent. and
trigger a mandatory offer to Shareholders under Rule 9. Full details of the Rule 9 Panel
Waiver are set out in Part 5 of this document.

6. SUBSCRIPTION
Certain investors have agreed to subscribe directly with the Company for the Subscription Shares at
the Issue Price pursuant to subscription letters entered into individually with the respective
Subscribers and the Company. The First Tranche Subscription Shares were issued at the same time
as the CIG First Tranche Shares, and it is expected, subject to Shareholder approval, that the
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Second Tranche Subscription Shares will be issued at the same time as the CIG Second Tranche
Shares.

7. DETAILS OF THE OPEN OFFER
Open Offer Entitlement
In recognition of their continued support to the Company, the Company considers it important that,
where reasonably practicable, Shareholders have an opportunity to participate in its equity
placements.

The Company is providing all Qualifying Shareholders with the opportunity to subscribe, at the Issue
Price, for an aggregate maximum of 35,515,679 Open Offer Shares, raising gross proceeds of up to
£4 million.

Qualifying Shareholders may apply for Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer at the Issue Price
on the following basis:

1 Open Offer Share for every 12.525 Existing Ordinary Shares

held by them and in their names rounded down to the nearest whole number of Ordinary Shares
and in proportion for any number of Existing Ordinary Shares held on the Record Date up to their
Open Offer Entitlement. Fractional entitlements which would otherwise arise will not be issued to the
Qualifying Shareholders but will be made available under the Excess Application Facility.

For the avoidance of doubt, “Qualifying Shareholders” excludes CIG and the subscriber pursuant to
the First Tranche Subscription.

Excess Entitlements
The Excess Application Facility enables Qualifying Shareholders to apply for Excess Shares in
excess of their Open Offer Entitlement. Not all Shareholders will be Qualifying Shareholders.
Shareholders who are located in, or are citizens of, or have a registered office in certain overseas
jurisdictions will not qualify to participate in the Open Offer. The attention of Overseas Shareholders
is drawn to the section entitled “Overseas Shareholders” below.

Valid applications by Qualifying Shareholders will be satisfied in full up to their Open Offer
Entitlements. Qualifying Shareholders can apply for less or more than their Open Offer Entitlements
but the Company cannot guarantee that any application for Excess Shares under the Excess
Application Facility will be satisfied as this will depend in part on the extent to which other
Qualifying Shareholders apply for less than or more than their own Open Offer Entitlements. The
Company may satisfy valid applications for Excess Shares in whole or in part but reserves the right
at its sole discretion not to satisfy, or to scale back, applications made in excess of Open Offer
Entitlements.

Qualifying Shareholders should note that the Open Offer is not a rights issue and therefore the
Open Offer Shares which are not applied for by Qualifying Shareholders will not be sold in the
market for the benefit of the Qualifying Shareholders who do not apply under the Open Offer. The
Application Form is not a document of title and cannot be traded or otherwise transferred.

Application has been made for the Open Offer Entitlements and Excess CREST Open Offer
Entitlements for Qualifying CREST Shareholders to be admitted to CREST. It is expected that the
Open Offer Entitlements and the Excess CREST Open Offer Entitlements will be admitted to
CREST as soon as reasonably practicable after at 8.00 a.m. on 22 December 2023. Applications
through the CREST system may only be made by the Qualifying Shareholder originally entitled or by
a person entitled by virtue of a bona fide market claim.

The Open Offer Shares must be paid in full on application. The latest time and date for receipt of
completed Application Forms or CREST applications and payment in respect of the Open Offer is
11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024.

Further details of the Open Offer and the terms and conditions on which it is being made, including
the procedure for application and payment, are contained in Part 3 of this document and on the
accompanying Application Form. The Open Offer is conditional on, inter alia, completion of the
Second Tranche Subscription and the CIG Second Tranche Subscription.
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Overseas Shareholders
The attention of Qualifying Shareholders who have registered addresses outside the United
Kingdom, or who are citizens or residents of countries other than the United Kingdom, or who are
holding Existing Ordinary Shares for the benefit of such persons, (including, without limitation,
custodians, nominees, trustees and agents) or who have a contractual or other legal obligation to
forward this document or the Application Form to such persons, is drawn to the information which
appears in paragraph 6 of Part 3 of this document.

In particular, Qualifying Shareholders who have registered addresses in or who are resident in, or
who are citizens of, countries other than the UK (including without limitation the United States of
America and Canada), should consult their professional advisers as to whether they require any
governmental or other consents or need to observe any other formalities to enable them to take up
their entitlements under the Open Offer.

8. GENERAL MEETING
The Notice of General Meeting is set out in Part 9 of this document.

CIG Resolutions
The CIG Resolutions which are required in order to enable the Company to issue and allot the CIG
Second Tranche Shares and are summarised below.

Resolution 1

Resolution 1, if passed will grant to the Directors a general authority to allot the CIG Second
Tranche Shares and will be proposed as an ordinary resolution. To be passed an ordinary
resolution requires a simple majority of the votes cast at the General Meeting (by Shareholders
present in person or by proxy) to be cast in its favour.

This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of the Resolution and will, unless the General Resolutions are passed, be in
addition to the 2023 Authorities.

Resolution 1 is conditional on Resolution 2 and the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution being passed at the
General Meeting

Resolution 2

Resolution 2, if passed will grant to the Directors the authority to allot the CIG Second Tranche
Shares on a non pre-emptive basis and will be proposed as a special resolution. To be passed a
special resolution requires at least three quarters of the votes cast at the General Meeting (by
Shareholders present in person or by proxy) to be cast in favour of it.

This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of the Resolution and will, unless the General Resolutions are passed, be in
addition to the 2023 Authorities.

Resolution 2 is conditional on Resolution 1 and the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution being passed at the
General Meeting

In the event that the CIG Resolutions and the Rule 9 Resolution are not passed at the General
Meeting:

(a) the CIG Second Tranche Subscription will not complete;

(b) the Second Tranche Subscription will not complete; and

(c) the Open Offer will not complete.

Subscriptions Resolutions
Resolution 3

Resolution 3, if passed will grant to the Directors a general authority to allot the Second Tranche
Subscription Shares and will be proposed as an ordinary resolution. To be passed an ordinary
resolution requires a simple majority of the votes cast at the General Meeting (by Shareholders
present in person or by proxy) to be cast in its favour.
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This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of the Resolution and will, unless the General Resolutions are passed, be in
addition to the 2023 Authorities and the authority granted by Resolution 1.

Resolution 4

Resolution 4, if passed will grant to the Directors a authority to allot the Second Tranche
Subscription Shares on a non pre-emptive basis and will be proposed as a special resolution. To
be passed a special resolution requires at least three quarters of the votes cast at the General
Meeting (by Shareholders present in person or by proxy) to be cast in favour of it.

This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of the Resolution and will, unless the General Resolutions are passed, be in
addition to the 2023 Authorities and the authority granted by Resolution 2.

The Subscription Resolutions are conditional on the passing of the CIG Resolutions and the Rule 9
Waiver Resolution. In the event that the Subscription Resolutions are not passed at the General
Meeting, the Second Tranche Subscription will not complete.

Open Offer Resolutions
Resolution 5

Resolution 5, if passed will grant to the Directors a general authority to allot the Open Offer Shares
and will be proposed as an ordinary resolution. To be passed an ordinary resolution requires a
simple majority of the votes cast at the General Meeting (by Shareholders present in person or by
proxy) to be cast in its favour.

This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of the Resolution and will, unless the General Resolutions are passed, be in
addition to the 2023 Authorities and the authority granted by Resolution 1 and 3.

Resolution 6

Resolution 6, if passed will grant to the Directors an authority to allot the Open Offer Shares on a
non pre-emptive basis and will be proposed as a special resolution. To be passed a special
resolution requires at least three quarters of the votes cast at the General Meeting (by Shareholders
present in person or by proxy) to be cast in favour of it.

This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of the Resolution and will, unless the General Resolutions are passed, be in
addition to the 2023 Authorities and the authority granted by Resolution 2 and 4.

The Open Offer Resolutions are conditional on the CIG Resolutions and the Rule 9 Waiver
Resolution. In the event that the Open Offer Resolutions are not passed at the General Meeting, the
Open Offer will not complete.

General Resolutions
In addition, at the General Meeting the General Resolutions will be proposed to refresh and replace
the 2023 Authorities and are summarised below.

Resolution 7

Resolution 7, if passed, will grant to the Directors a general authority to allot:

(a) in relation to a pre-emptive rights issue only, equity securities (as defined by section 560 of
the Act) up to a maximum nominal amount of £5,550,141, which represents approximately
two thirds of the Enlarged Share Capital (assuming the full take up of the Open Offer). This
maximum is reduced by the nominal amount of any Relevant Securities allotted under
paragraph (b) below;

(b) in any other case, Relevant Securities up to a maximum nominal amount of £2,775,071 which
represents approximately one third of the Enlarged Share Capital (assuming the full take up
of the Open Offer). This maximum is reduced by the nominal amount of any equity securities
allotted under paragraph (a) above in excess of £2,775,071.

Therefore, the maximum nominal amount of Relevant Securities (including equity securities) which
may be allotted under this resolution is £5,550,141. Resolution 7 will be proposed as an ordinary
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resolution. To be passed an ordinary resolution requires a simple majority of the votes cast at the
General Meeting (by Shareholders present in person or by proxy) to be cast in its favour.

This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire on the date which is 18 months after the date
on which it is passed or, if earlier, the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company and
will, be in substitution for 2023 Authorities, but will be in addition to the authority granted by
Resolutions 1, 3 and 5.

The Directors currently intend only to make use of this authority:

(a) in connection with the grant of any options to the directors of the Company and employees
of the Company’s group; and

(b) as may be necessary to manage the Company’s capital resources.

Resolution 7 is conditional on the passing of the CIG Resolutions, the Subscription Resolutions and
the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution.

Resolution 8

Resolution 8, if passed, will give the Directors power, pursuant to the authority to allot granted by
Resolution 7 to allot equity securities (as defined by section 560 of the Act) or sell treasury shares
for cash without first offering them to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings up
to a maximum nominal amount of £832,521 which represents approximately 10 per cent. of the
Enlarged Share Capital (assuming the full take up of the Open Offer).

Resolution 8 will be proposed as a special resolution. To be passed a special resolution requires at
least three quarters of the votes cast at the General Meeting (by Shareholders present in person or
by proxy) to be cast in favour of it.

The directors have no immediate plans to make use of this authority other than in those
circumstances which are referred to in the explanation relating to Resolution 7.

This authority, if granted by Shareholders, will expire and will expire on the date which is 18 months
after the date on which it is passed or, if earlier, the date of the next annual general meeting of the
Company and will, be in substitution for 2023 Authorities, but will be in addition to the authority
granted by Resolutions 2, 4 and 6.

Resolution 8 is conditional on the passing of the CIG Resolutions, the Subscription Resolutions, the
Rule 9 Waiver Resolution and Resolution 7.

Resolution 9

Resolution 9 is the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution and will be proposed as an ordinary resolution for of
Independent Shareholders to approve the Rule 9 Panel Waiver. If passed it will approve the Rule 9
Panel Waiver and (subject to the passing of the CIG Resolutions) will allow the issue of the CIG
Second Tranche Shares to CIG without CIG being required to make a mandatory offer under
Rule 9.

9. ACTION TO BE TAKEN
The record date for the determination of Shareholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at
the General Meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof is 6.00 p.m. on 9 January
2024.

You will be able to register your proxy appointment and vote by proxy electronically using the link
www.signalshares.com. You will need to log into your Signal Shares account, or register if you have
not previously done so, to register you will need your Investor Code, this is detailed on your share
certificate or available from our Registrar, Link Group. Proxy votes must be received no later than
1.00 p.m. on 8 January 2024.

You may also request a hard copy of the form of proxy by contacting the Company’s Registrar, Link
Group on Tel: 0371 664 0321 from the UK and +44 371 664 0321 from overseas. Calls are
charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside the United Kingdom
will be charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are open between 09:00 and 17:30,
Monday to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales, or by email at
shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk.
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If you are returning your form of proxy by post you must ensure that it is posted in time for it to
arrive at our Registrars, Link Group, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL, no later
than 1.00 p.m. on 8 January 2024.

For CREST Members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service, please refer to Notes 5 to 7 of the notes to the Notice of General Meeting.

Application Forms
Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders will find enclosed with this document an Application Form.

Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders should complete and return the Application Form in
accordance with the instructions note thereon and in Part 3 of this document.

Open Offer
The latest time for application under the Open Offer to be received is 11.00 a.m. on 9 January
2024. The procedure for application and payment depends on whether, at the time at which
application and payment is made, you have an Application Form in respect of your Open Offer
Entitlements or have Open Offer Entitlements credited to your stock account in CREST in respect of
such entitlement. The procedures for application and payment are set out in Part 3 of this
document.

For the avoidance of doubt, CIG and any subscriber under the First Tranche Subscription are not
Qualifying Shareholders.

If you are a Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder you will have received an Application Form which
gives details of your entitlement under the Open Offer (as shown by the number of Open Offer
Entitlements allocated to you). If you wish to apply for Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer
(whether in respect of your Open Offer Entitlement or both your Open Offer Entitlement and any
Excess Shares), you should complete the accompanying Application Form in accordance with the
procedure for application set out in Part 3 of this document. Shareholders are advised to return the
Application Form using the enclosed reply paid envelope, which can also be used for return of
completed Forms of Proxy if a paper form of proxy has been requested.

If you are a Qualifying CREST Shareholder and do not hold any Existing Ordinary Shares in
certificated form, no Application Form is enclosed with this document and you will receive a credit
to your appropriate stock account in CREST in respect of the Open Offer Entitlements representing
your entitlement under the Open Offer except (subject to certain conditions) if you are an Overseas
Shareholder who has a registered address in or is a resident in or a citizen of a Restricted
Jurisdiction. Applications by Qualifying CREST Shareholders for Excess Shares in excess of their
Open Offer Entitlements should be made in accordance with the procedures set out in Part 3 of this
document, unless you are an Overseas Shareholder in which event, applications should be made in
accordance with the procedures set out in paragraph 6 of Part 3 of this document. Qualifying
CREST Shareholders who are CREST sponsored members should refer to their CREST sponsors
regarding the action to be taken in connection with this document and the Open Offer.

If you are in any doubt as to what action you should take, you should immediately seek
your own personal financial advice from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor,
accountant or other independent professional adviser duly authorised under the FSMA if
you are resident in the United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately authorised
independent financial adviser.

10. ADMISSION, SETTLEMENT AND CREST
Application will be made to the London Stock Exchange for the New Ordinary Shares to be
admitted to trading on AIM. It is expected that Admission will become effective at 8.00 a.m. on
11January 2024.

The Articles permit the Company to issue shares in uncertificated form. CREST is a computerised
paperless share transfer and settlement system which allows shares and other securities to be held
in electronic rather than paper form. The Existing Ordinary Shares are already admitted to CREST
and therefore the New Ordinary Shares will also be eligible for settlement in CREST. CREST is a
voluntary system and Shareholders who wish to retain certificates will be able to do so upon
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request. It is expected that the New Ordinary Shares due to uncertificated holders will be delivered
in CREST on 11 January 2024.

11. IRREVOCABLE UNDERTAKINGS AND RECOMMENDATION
The Directors consider the issue of the Second Tranche Subscription Shares, the CIG Second
Tranche Shares and the Open Offer Shares to be fair and reasonable and in the best interests of
the Company as a whole and accordingly unanimously recommend that Shareholders vote in favour
of Resolutions 1 to 8 in this regard.

The Independent Directors, who have been so advised by Strand Hanson Limited, consider the
Proposals set out in this document to be fair and reasonable and in the best interests of the
Company and its Independent Shareholders as a whole, including in respect of the intentions of
CIG in respect of the ongoing strategy and operation of the Group, as set out in paragraph 4 of
Part 7 of this document. In providing advice to the Independent Directors, Strand Hanson Limited
has taken into account the commercial assessment of the Independent Directors.

Accordingly, the Independent Directors unanimously recommend that Independent Shareholders vote
in favour of the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution (which is to be proposed as Resolution 9), as the
Independent Directors intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings.

Stephen Betts, Dan Betts and Tom Hill (being the only Directors holding Ordinary Shares as at the
Latest Practicable Date) and CIG, holding, in aggregate, between them approximately 31.4 per cent.
of the Existing Ordinary Shares, have undertaken to vote in favour of the Resolutions in respect of
their respective holdings of Ordinary Shares in the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, CIG is
not able to vote in respect of Resolution 9.

In addition, certain shareholders, holding, in aggregate, between them approximately 2.00 per cent.
of the Existing Ordinary Shares, have indicated, without having signed an undertaking, that they
intend to vote in favour of the Resolutions.

The CIG Second Tranche Subscription is conditional on the passing of the CIG Resolutions
and the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution. The Second Tranche Subscription is conditional on the
passing of the CIG Resolutions, Rule 9 Waiver Resolution and the Subscription Resolutions.
The Open Offer is conditional on the passing of the CIG Resolutions, the Rule 9 Waiver
Resolution and the Open Offer Resolutions.

Yours faithfully,

Dan Betts
Interim Executive Chairman and CEO
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PART 2

RISK FACTORS

Shareholders should be aware that an investment in the Company is highly speculative and involves
a high degree of risk. Before making any investment decision, prospective investors should carefully
consider all the information contained in this document including, in particular, the risk factors
described below, which are not presented in any order of priority and may not be exhaustive.

The following risk factors, together with the risk factors set forth in the Company’s Annual Report
and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022 available on the Company’s website at https://
www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk/investors/reports-presentations/, are all those known by the
Directors which are considered to be material in their opinion. Additional risks and uncertainties not
currently known to the Directors, or that the Directors currently deem immaterial, may also have an
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

An investment in the Company may not be suitable for all recipients of this document. Qualifying
Shareholders are advised to consult an independent financial adviser duly authorised under FSMA
who specialises in advising on the acquisition of shares and other securities before making a
decision to invest.

It should be noted that the Company is relying on an exemption from issuing a prospectus in
section 86 of the FSMA (as amended) resulting in this document not being considered to be a
prospectus. Consequently, this document does not include all information that an investor would
receive if it were a prospectus.

Asset portfolio
The Company’s revenue is primarily derived from the Yanfolila Gold Mine in Mali as the ramp of
production at the Company’s Kouroussa asset continues. Reliance on a limited number of producing
assets requires continual focus on efficient management of operations and risks. Should cash flows
from either or both of the Company’s producing assets be impacted adversely from an unexpected
event, the Company may need to raise additional funding. Should additional funding be required,
then there is a risk that the Company may not be able to obtain it in the necessary timeframe.

Changes to commodity prices, cash flow and credit risk
As a junior mining company operating its second gold mine, the Company’s financial performance is
significantly exposed to the price of gold. Should the gold price fall significantly this will impact
future reserves, profitability and could ultimately impact the Company’s ability to service debt and
meet operating costs. Financial performance may also be impacted through foreign exchange
movements, rises in fuel prices or where there is an inability to secure adequate funding.

Mining risk
The Company’s financial performance is currently largely dependent on the efficient operation of the
Yanfolila Gold Mine in Mali, while the ramp of production at the Company’s Kouroussa mine
continues. This requires effective management of the mining contractor, strip ratios, mining
techniques, dewatering, infrastructure and pit slopes in ensuring cost effectiveness and timely
delivery of material at sufficient quantity and grade for processing. The mining contractor’s
performance in at Yanfolila 2021 and early 2022 has been below expectations largely due to
availability, and productivity stemming from cumulative maintenance deficiencies. Any significant
delays in delivering the planned ore volumes or additional costs of mining, ore losses and additional
dilution could lead to the project requiring additional working capital or becoming uneconomic.

Interruption to fuel supply at Kouroussa
The Company notes in recent days, on 18 December 2023, a fuel depot fire in Guinea’s capital,
Conakry, impacted the fuel supply in the country. The Company is working with its fuel supplier to
mitigate any potential adverse supply impacts at the Kouroussa mine in Guinea. As a precautionary
measure, mining operations have been temporarily suspended until regular fuel supplies can be
restored to ensure the plant’s continued operation. If the adverse supply impacts persist, there is a
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substantial risk to operations at Kouroussa, potentially necessitating a controlled shutdown of the
processing plant in the event of depleted fuel reserves.

Geological risk
The Company’s cashflows and profitability is dependent on achieving the predicted grades and
tonnages of ore forecast in the mine plans. The mine plans are based on geological models,
supported by resource and reserve estimates. Resources and reserves are estimated based on
assumed continuity between points of observation where data samples have been gathered. Until
material is mined and processed, there is a risk that the grades and tonnages of ore may be
materially different to that estimated, including through unanticipated incursions by artisanal mining
groups.

Fraud, error and corruption
The Company is aware of the risk of internal fraud, error and corruption activities, and the various
ways that such risk may transpire. There is also awareness that the risk is increased where there
are differences in financial processes, language or culture between stakeholders.

Operational performance and reporting
As a public company, the Company acknowledges the importance of communicating actual and
forecast operational performance on a timely basis.

Social licence to operate the Company’s ability to develop and operate its projects is dependent on
the support of its host communities. Overall relations with the host communities have been positive,
however there is a risk that if the relationships deteriorate then the ability of the Company to
operate could be temporarily or permanently adversely impacted.

Health and Safety
The mining workplace environment is subject to a number of hazards, including the risk of serious
injury or fatality while working on site. The physical remoteness of sites also increases the risk of
commuting to site and the availability of medical assistance in the event of an incident. The
Company is also aware of the risk of an outbreak of a serious illness amongst the workforce and
the associated potential for large-scale disruption to operations as a consequence.

Security and conflict risk
The Company is exposed to the external physical security risks presented by artisanal mining
activities, territorial conflicts and/or terrorist actions which could impact our people, our operations
and our broader supply chain.

Legal and regulatory risks
The Company’s exploration, development and exploitation activities are dependent upon the grant of
appropriate licences, concessions, leases, permits and regulatory consents which may be withdrawn
or made subject to limitations. Such licences and permits are as a practical matter subject to the
discretion of the applicable Government or Government office.

The Company must comply with known standards, existing laws and regulations that may entail
greater or lesser costs and delays depending on the nature of the activity to be permitted. The
interpretations, amendments to existing laws and regulations, or more stringent enforcement of
existing laws and regulations could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s results of
operations and financial condition. Whilst the Company continually seeks to do everything within its
control to ensure that the terms of each licence are met and adhered to, third parties may seek to
exploit any technical breaches in licence terms for their own benefit. There is a risk that
negotiations with a Government in relation to the grant, renewal or extension of a licence, or Mineral
Development Agreement (“MDA”), may not result in the grant, renewal or extension taking effect
prior to the expiry of the previous licence period, and there can be no assurance of the terms of
any extension, renewal or grant.

Additionally, whilst the Company has diligently investigated title to its licences and, to the best of its
knowledge, title is in good standing, this should not be construed as a guarantee of title. If a title
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defect does exist, it is possible that the Company may lose all or part of its interest in the relevant
properties. Changes to existing applicable laws and regulations, more stringent interpretations of
existing laws or inconsistent interpretation or application of existing laws by relevant authorities have
the potential to adversely impact the Company’s business activities. The Company’s operational and
exploration activities are subject to extensive regulation in the relevant jurisdictions.

Geopolitical risks
The recent changes to governments in Mali and Guinea together with the ongoing economic
sanctions in Mali have had an impact and disruption to logistical movement, of people, goods,
supplies, spares, reagents, and the export of gold which has had some impact on our ability and
cost to operate. Further, the current conflict between Russia and Ukraine has had a significant
impact on both the availability and cost of fuel supplied to West Africa. Should this conflict continue
then there is an ongoing risk to fuel supply and costs. Should further sanctions be placed or
existing sanctions continue for an extended period, there is an increased risk to the ability to
operate.

There is no assurance that the Company’s exploration and development activities will be successful,
and statistically few properties that are explored are ultimately developed into profitable producing
mines.

Capital project delivery
Large capital projects require multi-year execution plans. The Company’s ability to deliver projects in
terms of safety, cost and schedule – may vary due to changes in technical requirements, law and
regulation, government or community expectations, skills, availability of funding or through
commercial or economic assumptions proving inaccurate through the execution phase. Delays and
overruns in projects could negatively impact our profitability, cash flow, ability to repay project-
specific debt and relationships with key stakeholders.

The above risk factors do not necessarily comprise all those associated with an investment
in the Company.
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PART 3

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OPEN OFFER

1. Introduction
As explained in Part 1 of this document, the Company is proposing to issue 156,510,035 new
Ordinary Shares pursuant to the CIG Second Tranche Subscription and the Second Tranche
Subscription to raise $22.2 million (approximately £17.6 million and up to a further 35,515,679 new
Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Open Offer to raise up to a further £4 million before expenses.

Qualifying Shareholders are being offered the opportunity under the Open Offer to acquire Open
Offer Shares at the Issue Price per Ordinary Share, being the same price per share as in the
Subscription and the CIG Subscription.

The Issue Price per Open Offer Share represents approximately a 2 per cent. premium to volume
weighted average price of the Ordinary Shares for the 30 day period ending on 6 December 2023,
being the last practicable day prior to the announcement inter alia of the CIG Subscription.

The New Ordinary Shares will rank pari passu in all respects with each other and with the Existing
Ordinary Shares and will, in aggregate, represent approximately 23.1 per cent. of the Enlarged
Share Capital (assuming full take up under the Open Offer). This document and, where relevant, the
Application Form, contain the formal terms and conditions of the Open Offer.

2. The Open Offer
Subject to the terms and conditions set out below and in the Application Form, the Company invites
Qualifying Shareholders to apply for Open Offer Shares at the Issue Price, payable in full in cash
on application, free of all expenses, on the basis of:

1 Open Offer Share for every 12.525 Existing Ordinary Shares

held by them and registered in their names at close of business at 6.00 p.m. on 19 December
2023, the Record Date and in proportion for any other number of Existing Ordinary Shares then
held.

A Qualifying Shareholder who holds Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated and uncertificated form
will be treated as having separate holdings for the purpose of calculating entitlements under the
Open Offer.

Fractions of Open Offer Shares will not be allocated to Qualifying Shareholders and entitlements to
apply for Open Offer Shares will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of Open Offer
Shares.

Qualifying Shareholders may apply for any whole number of Open Offer Shares up to their Open
Offer Entitlement, which, in the case of Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders, is equal to the number
of Open Offer Shares as shown in Box B on their Application Form or, in the case of Qualifying
CREST Shareholders, is equal to the number of Open Offer Shares credited to their stock account
in CREST.

Qualifying Shareholders are also invited to apply for additional Open Offer Shares under the Excess
Application Facility, up to the total number of Open Offer Shares available under the Open Offer.
Any Open Offer Shares not issued to a Qualifying Shareholder pursuant to their Open Offer
Entitlement will be apportioned between those Qualifying Shareholders who have applied for Excess
Shares at the sole discretion of the Board, provided that no Qualifying Shareholder shall be
required to subscribe for more Open Offer Shares than he or she has specified on the Application
Form or through CREST.

The Open Offer is not a rights issue. Qualifying CREST Shareholders should note that
although the Open Offer Entitlements (in respect of Qualifying CREST Shareholders) may be
admitted to CREST and be enabled for settlement, applications in respect of entitlements
under the Open Offer may only be made by the Qualifying Shareholder originally entitled or
by a person entitled by virtue of a bona fide market claim raised by Euroclear’s Claims
Processing Unit. Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders should note that the Application Form
is not a negotiable document and cannot be traded. Qualifying Shareholders should be
aware that in the Open Offer, unlike in a rights issue, any Open Offer Shares not applied for
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will not be sold in the market or placed for the benefit of Qualifying Shareholders who do
not apply under the Open Offer.

The Existing Ordinary Shares are already enabled for settlement in CREST. No further application
for admission to CREST is required for the Open Offer Shares; all such shares, when issued and
fully paid, may be held and transferred by means of CREST as Ordinary Shares.

Application has been made for the Open Offer Entitlements of Qualifying CREST Shareholders to
be enabled for settlement in CREST. The conditions to such admission having already been met,
the Open Offer Entitlements are expected to be admitted to CREST as soon as practicable after
8.00 a.m. on 22 December 2023.

The Open Offer Shares will be issued fully paid and will be identical to, and rank pari passu in all
respects with, the Existing Ordinary Shares and will rank for all dividends or other distributions
declared, made or paid after the date of issue of the Open Offer Shares. No temporary documents
of title will be issued. Further details of the rights attaching to the Existing Ordinary Shares are set
out in the Articles of Association which are available on the Company’s website (https://
www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk/investors/documents-circulars/).

3. Conditions of the Open Offer
The Open Offer is conditional on:

(i) the passing of the CIG Resolutions at the General Meeting;

(ii) the passing of the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution;

(iii) the passing of the Open Offer Resolutions;

(iv) completion of the CIG Second Tranche Subscription and the Second Tranche Subscription;

(v) Admission becoming effective on or before 8.00 a.m. on 11 January 2024 (or such later date
and/or time as the Company may agree being no later than 16 January 2024.

If these and the other conditions to the Open Offer are not satisfied or waived (where capable of
waiver), the Open Offer will lapse and will not proceed and any applications made by Qualifying
Shareholders will be rejected. In these circumstances, application monies received by the Receiving
Agent in respect of Open Offer Shares will be returned (at the applicant’s sole risk), without
payment of interest, as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter. Lapsing of the Open Offer cannot
occur after dealings in the Open Offer Shares have begun.

4. Procedure for application and payment
If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, or the contents of this document, you
should immediately seek your own personal financial advice from your stockbroker, bank manager,
solicitor, accountant, fund manager or other independent adviser duly authorised under the FSMA
who specialises in advising on the acquisition of shares and other securities.

The action to be taken in relation to the Open Offer depends on whether you receive an Application
Form in respect of your Open Offer Entitlement under the Open Offer or have your Open Offer
Entitlement credited to your stock account in CREST.

If you receive an Application Form please refer to paragraph 4.1 of this Part 3.

If you hold your Existing Ordinary Shares in CREST and have received a credit of Open Offer
Entitlements to your CREST stock account, please refer to paragraph 4.2 of this Part 3. If a
Qualifying CREST Shareholder is a CREST sponsored member they should refer to their CREST
sponsor if they wish to apply for all or some of their entitlement under the Open Offer, as only their
CREST sponsor will be able to take the necessary action specified below to apply under the Open
Offer in respect of the Open Offer Entitlements of such members held in CREST. CREST members
who wish to apply under the Open Offer in respect of their Open Offer Entitlements in CREST
should refer to the CREST Manual for further information on the CREST procedures referred to
below.

If for any reason it becomes necessary to adjust the expected timetable as set out in this document
the Company will make an appropriate announcement to a Regulatory Information Service giving
details of the revised dates.
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4.1 If you have an Application Form in respect of your Open Offer Entitlement
4.1.1 General

Subject to paragraph 6 of this Part 3 in relation to Overseas Shareholders, Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders will receive an Application Form. The Application Form shows the
number of Existing Ordinary Shares registered in your name on the Record Date. It also
shows the number of Open Offer Shares for which you may apply pursuant to your Open
Offer Entitlement (on an initial pro rata basis) as shown by the total number of Open Offer
Shares allocated to you. You may apply for less than your initial pro rata entitlement should
you wish to do so. You may also apply for Excess Shares by completing Boxes E and F on
the Application Form.

Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders may also hold such an Application Form by virtue of a
bona fide market claim. If the total number of Open Offer Shares applied for by all Qualifying
Shareholders exceeds 15,150,000, applications for Open Offer Shares will be scaled back at
the discretion of the Directors. The instructions and other terms set out in the Application
Form form part of the terms of the Open Offer in relation to Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders.

4.1.2 Market Claims

Applications for the Open Offer Shares may only be made on the Application Form and may
only be made by the Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder named in it or by a person entitled
by virtue of a bona fide market claim in relation to a purchase of Existing Ordinary Shares
through the market prior to the date upon which the Existing Ordinary Shares were marked
“ex” the entitlement to the Open Offer by the London Stock Exchange, being 8.00 a.m. on
21 December 2023. Application Forms may be split up to 3.00 p.m. on 05 January 2024.

The Application Form is not a negotiable document and cannot be separately traded. A
Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder who has sold or transferred all or part of his holding of
Existing Ordinary Shares prior to 8.00 a.m. on 21 December 2023, being the date upon
which the Existing Ordinary Shares were marked “ex” the entitlement to the Open Offer by
the London Stock Exchange, should consult his broker or other professional adviser as soon
as possible, as the invitation to acquire Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer may be a
benefit which may be claimed from him by the transferee pursuant to the rules of the London
Stock Exchange. Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders who have sold all of their registered
holdings should, if the market claim is to be settled outside CREST, complete Box J on the
Application Form and immediately send it to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through
whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Application Form should not, however, subject to certain exceptions, be forwarded to or
transmitted in or into the United States of America, Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand,
the Republic of South Africa or any other Restricted Jurisdiction. If the market claim is to be
settled outside CREST, the beneficiary of the claim should follow the procedures set out in
the Application Form. If the market claim is to be settled in CREST, the beneficiary of the
claim should follow the procedures set out in paragraph 4.2 below.

4.1.3 Application Procedures

If you are a Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder and wish to apply for all or some of your
entitlement to Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer you should complete and sign the
Application Form in accordance with the instructions on it and send it, together with the
appropriate remittance, by post to Link Group, Corporate Actions, Central Square, 29
Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL, so as to arrive no later than 11.00 a.m. on 09 January
2024. A reply-paid envelope is enclosed for use by Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders in
connection with the Open Offer. Please note that the Receiving

Agent cannot provide financial advice on the merits of the Open Offer or as to whether or not
you should take up your entitlement to Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer.

If any Application Form is sent by first class post or using the reply-paid envelope within the
United Kingdom, Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders are recommended to allow at least
four Business Days for delivery. The Receiving Agent, on the Company’s behalf but only with
the agreement of the Company, may elect to accept Application Forms and remittances after
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11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024 in respect of those bearing a post mark of before that date
and time. The Receiving Agent may also (on behalf of the Company but only with the
agreement of the Company) elect to treat an Application Form as valid and binding on the
person(s) by whom or on whose behalf it is lodged, even if it is not completed in accordance
with the relevant instructions, or if it does not strictly comply with the terms and conditions of
application. Applications will not be acknowledged.

The Receiving Agent, on behalf of the Company but only with the agreement of the
Company, also reserves the right (but shall not be obliged) to accept applications in respect
of which remittances are received prior to 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024 from an authorised
person (as defined in the FSMA) specifying the number of Open Offer Shares applied for
and undertaking to lodge the relevant Application Form in due course but, in any event,
within two Business Days.

4.1.4 Payments

All payments must be in pounds sterling and cheques or banker’s drafts should be made
payable to ‘Link Market Services Limited RE: Hummingbird Resources plc – Open Offer A/C’
and crossed ‘A/C payee only’. Cheques or banker’s drafts must be drawn on an account at a
branch of a bank or building society in the British Isles which is either a settlement member
of the Cheque and Credit Clearing Company Limited or the CHAPS Clearing Company
Limited or which has arranged for its cheques and banker’s drafts to be cleared through the
facilities provided by any of those companies or committees and must bear the appropriate
sort code in the top right hand corner. Eurocheques will not be accepted. Cheques should
be drawn on the personal account to which you have sole or joint title to funds. Third party
cheques will not be accepted with the exception of building society cheques or banker’s
drafts where the bank or building society has confirmed the name of the account holder
(which should match the name detailed on page 1 of the Application Form) and have added
the branch stamp.

Cheques or banker’s drafts will be presented for payment upon receipt. The Company
reserves the right to instruct the Receiving Agent to seek special clearance of cheques and
banker’s drafts to allow the Company to obtain value for remittances at the earliest
opportunity. No interest will be allowed on payments made before they are due and any
interest earned on such payments will accrue for the benefit of the Company. It is a term of
the Open Offer that cheques shall be honoured on first presentation, and the Company and/
or the Receiving Agent (on the Company’s behalf) may elect in their absolute discretion to
treat as invalid acceptances in respect of which cheques are not so honoured. Application
monies will be paid into a separate bank account pending the Open Offer becoming
unconditional. In the event that the Open Offer does not become unconditional the Open
Offer will lapse and application monies will be returned by post to applicants, at the
applicants’ risk and without interest, to the address set out on the Application Form, as soon
as practicable. The interest earned on monies held in the separate bank account will be
retained for the benefit of the Company.

4.1.5 Effect of Application

(i) All documents and remittances sent by post by or to an applicant (or as the applicant
may direct) will be sent at the applicant’s own risk. By completing and delivering an
Application Form, you (as the applicant(s)):

(ii) All documents and remittances sent by post by or to an applicant (or as the applicant
may direct) will be sent at the applicant’s own risk. By completing and delivering an
Application Form, you (as the applicant(s)):

(iii) request that the Open Offer Shares to which you will become entitled be issued to you
on the terms set out in this document and subject to the Articles of Association of the
Company;

(iv) agree that all applications, and contracts resulting therefrom, under the Open Offer shall
be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of England;

(v) confirm that in making the application you are not relying on any information or
representation other than that contained in this document, and you accordingly agree
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that no person responsible solely or jointly for this document or any part of it shall have
any liability for any such information or representation not so contained;

(vi) represent and warrant that you are the Qualifying Shareholder originally entitled to the
Open Offer Entitlements or that if you have received some or all of your Open Offer
Entitlements from a person other than the Company, you are entitled to apply under the
Open Offer in relation to such Open Offer Entitlements by virtue of a bona fide market
claim;

(vii) represent and warrant that you are not, and nor are you applying as nominee or agent
for, a person who is or may be liable to notify and account for tax under the Stamp
Duty Reserve Tax Regulations 1986 at any of the increased rates referred to in
Section 93 (Depository Receipts) or Section 96 (Clearance Services) of the Finance
Act 1986;

(viii) confirm that in making such application you are not relying on any information in relation
to the Company other than that contained in this document and you agree that no
person responsible solely or jointly for this document or any part of it or involved in the
preparation thereof shall have any liability for any such other information and further
agree that having had the opportunity to read this document, you will be deemed to
have had notice of all the information concerning the Company contained therein.

If you do not wish to apply for any of the Open Offer Shares to which you are entitled under
the Open Offer, you should take no action and not complete or return the Application Form.
Shareholders are nevertheless requested to complete and return the Form of Proxy for use at
the General Meeting to be held at the offices of Gowling WLG (UK) LLP at 4 More London
Riverside, London SE1 2AN at 1.00 p.m. on 10 January 2024.

If you are in doubt whether or not you should apply for any of the Open Offer Shares under
the Open Offer, you should consult your independent financial adviser immediately. All
enquiries in relation to completion of the Application Form by Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders under the Open Offer should be addressed to Link Group, on Tel: 0371
664 0321 from the United Kingdom (UK) or +44 371 664 0321 from overseas or by post at
Link Group, Corporate Actions, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL. Calls
to Link Group’s number are charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by
provider. Calls to the Link Group’s number from outside the UK are charged at applicable
international rates. Different charges may apply to calls made from mobile telephones and
calls may be recorded and monitored randomly for security and training purposes. Link
Group cannot provide advice on the merits of the Open Offer nor given any financial, legal or
tax advice.

4.2 If you have Open Offer Entitlements credited to your stock account in CREST in respect of
your entitlement under the Open Offer

4.2.1 General

Subject as provided in paragraph 6 of this Part 3 in relation to certain Overseas
Shareholders, each Qualifying CREST Shareholder will receive credits to his stock account in
CREST of his Open Offer Entitlements equal to the number of Open Offer Shares for which
he is entitled to apply under the Open Offer. Entitlements to Open Offer Shares will be
rounded down to the nearest whole number and any fractional entitlements will therefore also
be rounded down. Qualifying CREST Shareholders may also apply for Open Offer Shares in
excess of their Open Offer Entitlement under the Excess Application Facility.

The CREST stock account to be credited will be the account under the participant ID and
member account ID which holds the Existing Ordinary Shares held on the Record Date by
the Qualifying CREST Shareholder in respect of which the Open Offer Entitlement has been
allocated.

If for any reason the Open Offer Entitlements cannot be enabled for settlement in CREST by,
or the stock accounts of Qualifying CREST Shareholders cannot be credited by, 8.00 a.m. on
22 December 2023 or such later time as the Company may decide, an Application Form will
be sent out to each Qualifying CREST Shareholder in substitution for the Open Offer
Entitlements credited (or due to be credited) to his stock account in CREST. In these
circumstances the expected timetable as set out in this document will be adjusted as
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appropriate and the provisions of this document applicable to Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders with Application Forms will apply to Qualifying CREST Shareholders
who receive an Application Form.

CREST members who wish to apply for some or all of their entitlements to Open Offer
Shares should refer to the CREST Manual for further information on the CREST procedures
referred to below. Should you need advice with regard to these procedures, please contact
Link Group, on Tel: 0371 664 0321 from the United Kingdom (UK) or +44 371 664 0321
from overseas or by post at Link Group, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street,
Leeds LS1 4DL. Calls to the Link Group’s number from outside the UK are charged at
applicable international rates. Different charges may apply to calls made from mobile
telephones and calls may be recorded and monitored randomly for security and training
purposes. Link Group cannot provide advice on the merits of the Open Offer nor given any
financial, legal or tax advice. Calls may be recorded and monitored randomly for security and
training purposes. If you are a CREST sponsored member you should consult your CREST
sponsor if you wish to apply for Open Offer Shares as only your CREST sponsor will be able
to take the necessary action to make this application in CREST.

4.2.2 Market Claims

Each of the Open Offer Entitlements will constitute a separate security for the purposes of
CREST. Although Open Offer Entitlements will be admitted to CREST and be enabled for
settlement, applications in respect of Open Offer Entitlements may only be made by the
Qualifying Shareholder originally entitled or by a person entitled by virtue of a bona fide
market claim transaction.

Transactions identified by the CREST Claims Processing Unit as “cum” the Open Offer
Entitlement will generate an appropriate market claim transaction and the relevant Open Offer
Entitlement(s) will thereafter be transferred accordingly. Please note that automated CREST
generated claims and buyer protection will not be offered on the Excess CREST Open Offer
Entitlement security.

4.2.3 USE Instructions

CREST members who wish to apply for Open Offer Shares in respect of all or some of their
Open Offer Entitlements in CREST must send (or, if they are CREST sponsored members,
procure that their CREST sponsor sends) an Unmatched Stock Event (“USE”) instruction to
Euroclear which, on its settlement, will have the following effect:

(i) the crediting of a stock account of the Receiving Agent under the participant ID and
member account ID specified below, with a number of Open Offer Entitlements
corresponding to the number of Open Offer Shares applied for; and

(ii) the creation of a CREST payment, in accordance with the CREST payment
arrangements, in favour of the payment bank of the Receiving Agent in respect of the
amount specified in the USE instruction which must be the full amount payable on
application for the number of Open Offer Shares referred to in (i) above.

4.2.4 Content of USE instructions in respect of the Open Offer Entitlement

The USE instruction must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear’s
specifications and must contain, in addition to the other information that is required for
settlement in CREST, the following details:

(i) the number of Open Offer Shares for which application is being made (and hence the
number of the Open Offer Entitlement(s) being delivered to the Receiving Agent);

(ii) the ISIN of the Open Offer Entitlement. This is GB00BP2F2566;

(iii) the participant ID of the accepting CREST member;

(iv) the member account ID of the accepting CREST member from which the Open Offer
Entitlements are to be debited;

(v) the participant ID of the Receiving Agent. This is 7RA33;

(vi) the member account ID of the Receiving Agent. This is 22301HUM;
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(vii) the amount payable by means of a CREST payment on settlement of the USE
instruction. This must be the full amount payable on application for the number of Open
Offer Shares referred to in (i) above;

(viii) the intended settlement date. This must be on or before 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024;
and

(ix) the corporate action number for the Open Offer. This will be available on viewing the
relevant corporate action details in CREST.

In order for an application under the Open Offer to be valid, the USE instruction must comply
with the requirements as to authentication and contents set out above and must settle on or
before 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024.

In order to assist prompt settlement of the USE instruction, CREST members (or their
sponsors, where applicable) may consider adding the contact name and telephone number
(in the free format shared note field); and a priority of at least 80.

CREST members and, in the case of CREST sponsored members, their CREST sponsors,
should note that the last time at which a USE instruction may settle on 9 January 2024 in
order to be valid is 11.00 a.m. on that day.

4.2.5 Content of USE instruction in respect of Excess Entitlements

The USE instruction must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear’s
specifications and must contain, in addition to the other information that is required for
settlement in CREST, the following details:

(i) the number of Excess Entitlements for which application is being made;

(ii) the ISIN of the Excess Entitlements. This is GB00BP2F2673;

(iii) the CREST participant ID of the accepting CREST member;

(iv) the CREST member account ID of the accepting CREST member from which the
Excess Entitlements are to be debited;

(v) the participant ID of the Receiving Agent in its capacity as a CREST receiving agent.
This is 7RA33;

(vi) the member account ID of the Receiving Agent in its capacity as a CREST receiving
agent. This is 22301HUM;

(vii) the amount payable by means of a CREST payment on settlement of the USE
instruction. This must be the full amount payable on application for the number of
Excess Entitlements referred to in (i) above;

(viii) the intended settlement date. This must be on or before 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024;
and

(ix) the Corporate Action Number for the Open Offer. This will be available by viewing the
relevant corporate action details in CREST.

In order for an application under the Open Offer to be valid, the USE instruction must comply
with the requirements as to authentication and contents set out above and must settle on or
before 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024.

In order to assist prompt settlement of the USE instruction, CREST members (or their
sponsors, where applicable) may consider adding the contact name and telephone number
(in the free format shared note field); and a priority of at least 80.

CREST members and, in the case of CREST sponsored members, their CREST sponsors,
should note that the last time at which a USE instruction may settle on 9 January 2024 in
order to be valid is 11.00 a.m. on that day.

4.2.6 Deposit of Open Offer Entitlements into, and withdrawal from, CREST

A Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder’s entitlement under the Open Offer as set out in an
Application Form may be deposited into CREST (either into the account of the Qualifying
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Shareholder named in the Application Form or into the name of a person entitled by virtue of
a bona fide market claim), provided that such Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder is also a
CREST member. Similarly, Open Offer Entitlements held in CREST may be withdrawn from
CREST so that the entitlement under the Open Offer is reflected in an Application Form.
Normal CREST procedures (including timings) apply in relation to any such deposit or
withdrawal, subject (in the case of a deposit into CREST) as set out in the Application Form.

A holder of an Application Form who is proposing so to deposit the entitlement set out in
such form is recommended to ensure that the deposit procedures are implemented in
sufficient time to enable the person holding or acquiring the Open Offer Entitlements following
their deposit into CREST to take all necessary steps in connection with taking up the
entitlement prior to 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024.

In particular, having regard to normal processing times in CREST and, on the part of the
Receiving Agent, the recommended latest time for depositing an Application Form with the
CCSS (the CREST Courier and Sorting Service, established by Euroclear to facilitate, inter
alia, the deposit and withdrawal of certificated securities), where the person entitled wishes to
hold the entitlement under the Open Offer set out in such Application Form as Open Offer
Entitlements in CREST, is 3.00 p.m. on 4 January 2024, and the recommended latest time
for receipt by Euroclear of a dematerialised instruction requesting withdrawal of Open Offer
Entitlements from CREST is 4.30 p.m. on 3 January 2024, in either case so as to enable the
person acquiring or (as appropriate) holding the Open Offer Entitlements following the deposit
or withdrawal (whether as shown in an Application Form or held in CREST) to take all
necessary steps in connection with applying in respect of the Open Offer Entitlements prior
to 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024.

4.2.7 Validity of application

A USE instruction complying with the requirements as to authentication and contents set out
above which settles by no later than 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024 will constitute a valid
application under the Open Offer.

4.2.8 CREST procedures and timings

CREST members and (where applicable) their CREST sponsors should note that Euroclear
does not make available special procedures, in CREST, for any particular corporate action.
Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of a USE
instruction and its settlement in connection with the Open Offer. It is the responsibility of the
CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST sponsored
member, to procure that his CREST sponsor takes) such action as shall be necessary to
ensure that a valid application is made as stated above by to 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024.
In this connection CREST members and (where applicable) their CREST sponsors are
referred in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations
of the CREST system and timings.

4.2.9 Incorrect or incomplete applications

If a USE instruction includes a CREST payment for an incorrect sum, the Company through
the Receiving Agent reserves the right:

(i) to reject the application in full and refund the payment to the CREST member in
question;

(ii) in the case that an insufficient sum is paid, to treat the application as a valid application
for such lesser whole number of Open Offer Shares as would be able to be applied for
with that payment at the Issue Price, refunding any unutilised sum to the CREST
member in question;

(iii) in the case that an excess sum is paid, to treat the application as a valid application for
all the Open Offer Shares referred to in the USE instruction(s) refunding any unutilised
sum to the CREST member in question.

4.2.10 Effect of a valid application

A CREST member who makes or is treated as making a valid application in accordance with
the above procedures will thereby:
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(i) pay the amount payable on application in accordance with the above procedures by
means of a CREST payment in accordance with the CREST payment arrangements (it
being acknowledged that the payment to the Receiving Agent payment bank in
accordance with the CREST payment arrangements shall, to the extent of the payment,
satisfy the obligation of the CREST member to pay to the Company the amount payable
on application);

(ii) request that the Open Offer Shares to which he will become entitled be issued to him
on the terms set out in this document and subject to the Articles of Association of the
Company;

(iii) agree that all applications and contracts resulting therefrom under the Open Offer shall
be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of England;

(iv) represent and warrant that he or she is not and nor is he or she applying as nominee
or agent for a person who is or may be liable to notify and account for tax under the
Stamp Duty Reserve Tax Regulations 1986 at any of the increased rates referred to in
Section 93 (Depository Receipts) or Section 96 (Clearance Services) of the Finance
Act 1986;

(v) confirm that in making such application he or she is not relying on any information in
relation to the Company other than that contained in this document and agrees that no
person responsible solely or jointly for this document or any part of it or involved in the
preparation thereof shall have any liability for any such other information and further
agree that having had the opportunity to read this document, he will be deemed to have
had notice of all the information concerning the Company contained therein; and

(vi) represent and warrant that he or she is the Qualifying Shareholder originally entitled to
the Open Offer Entitlements or that he has received such Open Offer Entitlements by
virtue of a bona fide market claim.

4.2.11 The Company’s discretion as to rejection and validity of applications

The Company may in its discretion:

(i) treat as valid (and binding on the CREST member concerned) an application which
does not comply in all respects with the requirements as to validity set out or referred
to in this Part 3;

(ii) accept an alternative properly authenticated dematerialised instruction from a CREST
member or (where applicable) a CREST sponsor as constituting a valid application in
substitution for or in addition to a USE instruction and subject to such further terms and
conditions as the Company may determine;

(iii) treat a properly authenticated dematerialised instruction (in this sub-paragraph the ‘first
instruction’) as not constituting a valid application if, at the time at which the Receiving
Agent receives a properly authenticated dematerialised instruction giving details of the
first instruction or thereafter, either the Company or the Receiving Agent have received
actual notice from Euroclear of any of the matters specified in regulation 35(5)(a) of the
CREST Regulations in relation to the first instruction. These matters include notice that
any information contained in the first instruction was incorrect or notice of lack of
authority to send the first instruction; and

(iv) accept an alternative instruction or notification from a CREST member or CREST
sponsored member or (where applicable) a CREST sponsor, or extend the time for
settlement of a USE instruction or any alternative instruction or notification, in the event
that, for reasons or due to circumstances outside the control of any CREST member or
CREST sponsored member or (where applicable) CREST sponsor, the CREST member
or CREST sponsored member is unable validly to apply for Open Offer Shares by
means of the above procedures. In normal circumstances, this discretion is only likely to
be exercised in the event of any interruption, failure or breakdown of CREST (or any
part of CREST) or on the part of the facilities and/or systems operated by the Registrar
in connection with CREST.
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4.2.12 Lapse of the Open Offer

In the event that the Open Offer does not become unconditional by 8.00 a.m. on 11 January
2024 or such later time and date as the Company may agree, being no later than
16 January 2024, the Open Offer will lapse, the Open Offer Entitlements admitted to CREST
will be disabled and the Receiving Agent will refund the amount paid by a Qualifying
CREST Shareholder by way of a CREST payment, without interest, as soon as practicable
thereafter. The interest earned on such monies, if any, will be retained for the benefit of the
Company.

5. Money Laundering Regulations
5.1 Holders of Application Forms

It is a term of the Open Offer that, to ensure compliance with the Money Laundering
Regulations, the Receiving Agent may require, at its absolute discretion, verification of the
identity of the person by whom or on whose behalf an Application Form is lodged with
payment (which requirements are referred to below as the “verification of identity
requirements”). If the Application Form is submitted by a UK regulated broker or intermediary
acting as agent, and which is itself subject to the Money Laundering Regulations, any
verification of identity requirements are the responsibility of such broker or intermediary and
not of the Receiving Agent. In such case, the lodging agent’s stamp should be inserted on
the Application Form.

The person lodging the Application Form with payment, and in accordance with the other
terms as described above (the “acceptor”), including any person who appears to the
Receiving Agent to be acting on behalf of some other person, accepts the Open Offer in
respect of such number of the Open Offer Shares as referred to in the Application Form (for
the purposes of this paragraph 5.1 (the “relevant shares”)) shall thereby be deemed to agree
to provide the Receiving Agent and/or the Company with such information and other
evidence as they or either of them may require to satisfy the verification of identity
requirements.

If the Receiving Agent determines that the verification of identity requirements apply to any
applicant or application, and the verification of identity requirements have not been satisfied
(which the Receiving Agent shall in its absolute discretion determine), the Company may, in
its absolute discretion, and without prejudice to any other rights of the Company, treat the
application as invalid or may confirm the allotment of the relevant shares to the applicant but
(notwithstanding any other term of the Open Offer) the relevant shares will not be issued to
the applicant unless and until the verification of identity requirements have been satisfied in
respect of that application (which the Receiving Agent shall in its absolute discretion
determine).

If the application is treated as invalid and the verification of identity requirements are not
satisfied within such period, being not less than seven days after a request for evidence of
identity is dispatched to the applicant, the Company will be entitled to make arrangements (in
its absolute discretion as to manner, timing and terms) to sell the relevant shares (and for
that purpose the Company will be expressly authorised to act as agent of the applicant). Any
proceeds of sale (net of expenses) of the relevant shares which shall be issued to and
registered in the name of the purchasers or an amount equivalent to the original payment,
whichever is the lower, will be held by the Company on trust for the applicant, subject to the
requirements of the Money Laundering Regulations being satisfied. The Receiving Agent is
entitled, in its absolute discretion, to determine whether the verification of identity
requirements apply to any applicant or application and whether such requirements have been
satisfied. Neither the Company nor the Receiving Agent will be liable to any person for any
loss or damage suffered or incurred (or alleged), directly or indirectly, as a result of the
exercise of any such discretion or as a result of any sale of relevant shares. Submission of
an Application Form with the appropriate remittance will constitute a warranty from the
applicant that the Money Laundering Regulations will not be breached by application of such
remittance. If the verification of identity requirements apply, failure to provide the necessary
evidence of identity within a reasonable time may result in your application being treated as
invalid or in delays in the despatch of share certificates or in crediting CREST stock
accounts.
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The verification of identity requirements will not usually apply:

(i) if the applicant is an organisation required to comply with the Money Laundering
Directive (the Council Directive on the prevention of the use of the financial system for
the purpose of money laundering or terrorist financing (no. 2015/849/EU91/308/EEC) as
it forms part of the domestic law of England and Wales by virtue of the European Union
(Withdrawal) Act 2018;

(ii) if the applicant is a regulated United Kingdom broker or intermediary acting as agent
and is itself subject to the Money Laundering Regulations; or

(iii) if the applicant (not being an applicant who delivers his application in person) makes
payment by way of a cheque drawn on an account in the name of such applicant.

Third party cheques will not be accepted with the exception of banker’s drafts or building
society cheques where the bank or building society has confirmed the name of the account
holder (which must be the same name as appears on page 1 of the Application Form) on
the back of the draft or cheque and have added their branch stamp.

In other cases the verification of identity requirements may apply. The following guidance is
provided in order to assist in satisfying the verification of identity requirements and to reduce
the likelihood of difficulties or delays and potential rejection of an application (but does not
limit the right of the Receiving Agent to require verification of identity as stated above).
Satisfaction of the verification of identity requirements may be facilitated in the following ways:

(i) if payment is made by building society cheque (not being a cheque drawn on an
account of the applicant) or banker’s draft, by the building society or bank endorsing on
the cheque or draft the applicant’s name and the number of an account held in the
applicant’s name at such building society or bank, such endorsement being validated by
a stamp and an authorised signature; or

(ii) if the Application Form is lodged with payment by an agent which is an organisation of
the kind referred to in (i) above or which is subject to anti-money laundering regulation
in a country which is a member of the financial action task force (the non- European
Union members of which are Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, Hong Kong, Iceland,
Japan, Mexico, New Zealand, Norway, the Russian Federation, Singapore, South Africa,
Switzerland, Turkey, the United States of America and, by virtue of their membership of
the gulf co-operation council, Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and the
United Arab Emirates), the agent should provide written confirmation that it has that
status with the Application Form and written assurance that it has obtained and
recorded evidence of the identity of the persons for whom it acts and that it will on
demand make such evidence available to the receiving agent or the relevant authority.

In order to confirm the acceptability of any written assurance referred to above or any other
case, the applicant should contact the Receiving Agent;

If the Application Form(s) is/are in respect of Open Offer Shares with an aggregate
subscription price of €15,000 (approximately £12,500) or more and is/are lodged by hand by
the acceptor in person, or if the Application Form(s) in respect of Open Offer Shares is/are
lodged by hand by the acceptor and the accompanying payment is not the acceptor’s own
cheque, he or she should ensure that he or she has with him or her evidence of identity
bearing his or her photograph (for example, his or her passport) and separate evidence of
his or her address. If, within a reasonable period of time following a request for verification of
identity, and in any case by no later than 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024, the Receiving Agent
has not received evidence satisfactory to it as aforesaid, the Receiving Agent may, at its
discretion, as agent of the Company, reject the relevant application, in which event the
monies submitted in respect of that application will be returned without interest to the
account at the drawee bank from which such monies were originally debited (without
prejudice to the rights of the Company to undertake proceedings to recover monies in
respect of the loss suffered by it as a result of the failure to produce satisfactory evidence as
aforesaid).
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5.2 Open Offer Entitlements in CREST
Submission of a USE instruction which on its settlement constitutes a valid application as
described above constitutes a warranty and undertaking by the applicant to provide promptly
to the Receiving Agent such information as may be specified by the Receiving Agent as
being required for the purposes of the Money Laundering Regulations. Pending the provision
of evidence satisfactory to the Receiving Agent as to identity, the Receiving Agent may in its
absolute discretion take, or omit to take, such action as it may determine to prevent or delay
issue of the Open Offer Shares concerned. If satisfactory evidence of identity has not been
provided within a reasonable time, then the application for the Open Offer Shares
represented by the USE instruction will not be valid. This is without prejudice to the right of
the Company to take proceedings to recover any loss suffered by it as a result of failure to
provide satisfactory evidence.

6. Overseas Shareholders
6.1 General

The making of the Open Offer to Overseas Shareholders may be affected by the laws or
regulatory requirements of the relevant jurisdiction. Overseas Shareholders who are in any
doubt in this respect should consult their professional advisers. No person receiving a copy
of this document and/or an Application Form and/or receiving a credit of Open Offer
Entitlements to a stock account in CREST in any Restricted Jurisdiction may treat the same
as constituting an invitation or offer to him, nor should he in any event use such Application
Form or credit of Open Offer Entitlements to a stock account in CREST, unless, in the
relevant territory, such an invitation or offer could lawfully be made to him or such Application
Form or credit of Open Offer Entitlements to a stock account in CREST could lawfully be
used without contravention of any legislation or other local regulatory requirements. Receipt
of this document and/or an Application Form or the crediting of Open Offer Entitlements to a
stock account in CREST does not constitute an invitation or offer to Overseas Shareholders
in the territories in which it would be unlawful to make an invitation or offer and in such
circumstances this document and/or any Application Forms are sent for information only.

It is the responsibility of any person receiving a copy of this document and/or an Application
Form and/or receiving a credit of Open Offer Entitlements to a stock account in CREST
outside the United Kingdom and wishing to make an application for any Open Offer Shares
to satisfy himself as to the full observance of the laws and regulatory requirements of the
relevant territory in connection therewith, including obtaining any governmental or other
consents which may be required or observing any other formalities required to be observed
in such territory and paying any issue, transfer or other taxes due in such other territory.
Persons (including, without limitation, nominees and trustees) receiving an Application Form
and/or receiving credits of Open Offer Entitlements to a stock account in CREST should not,
in connection with the Open Offer, distribute or send the Application Form or transfer the
Open Offer Entitlements into any jurisdiction when to do so would or might contravene local
securities laws or regulations, including the United States and the Restricted Jurisdictions.

If an Application Form or a credit of Open Offer Entitlements to a stock account in CREST is
received by any person in any such jurisdiction or by the agent or nominee of such person,
he or she must not seek to take up the Open Offer Shares except pursuant to an express
agreement with the Company. Any person who does forward an Application Form or transfer
the Open Offer Entitlements into any such jurisdiction, whether pursuant to a contractual or
legal obligation or otherwise, should draw the attention of the recipient to the contents of this
paragraph 6. The Company, the Receiving Agent reserves the right to reject an Application
Form or transfer of Open Offer Entitlements from or in favour of Shareholders in any such
jurisdiction or persons who are acquiring Open Offer Shares for resale in any such
jurisdiction.

The Company and the Receiving Agent reserve the right in their absolute discretion to treat
as invalid any application for Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer if it appears to the
Company, the Receiving Agent and its agents that such application or acceptance thereof
may involve a breach of the laws or regulations of any jurisdiction or if in respect of such
application the Company and the Receiving Agent have not been given the relevant warranty
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concerning overseas jurisdictions set out in the Application Form or in this document, as
appropriate. All payments under the Open Offer must be made in pounds sterling.

6.2 United States

The Open Offer Shares and the Open Offer Entitlements have not been and will not be
registered under the Securities Act or under any relevant securities laws of any state or other
jurisdiction of the United States and, accordingly, may not, be offered, sold, taken up,
delivered or transferred in or into the United States. Qualifying Shareholders with registered
addresses in, or who are located in, the United States, may not participate in the Open Offer.
Neither this document nor the Application Form constitutes or will constitute or form any part
of an offer or an invitation to apply for or an offer or an invitation to acquire any Open Offer
Entitlements or Open Offer Shares in the United States. An Application Form will not be sent
to any Shareholder located in or having a registered address in the United States. Application
Forms sent from or post-marked in the United States will be deemed to be invalid. No Open
Offer Entitlements will be credited to a stock account in CREST of any Qualifying Shareholder
with a registered address in the United States. Unless otherwise agreed by the Company at
its discretion, any person completing an Application Form or applying for Open Offer Shares
will be required to represent that such person (i) is not located in the United States or any
other Restricted Jurisdiction; and (ii) is not in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make
or accept an offer to acquire the Open Offer Shares.

6.3 Restricted Jurisdictions

Due to restrictions under the securities laws of the Restricted Jurisdictions, and subject to
certain exceptions, persons who have registered addresses in, or who are located, resident
or ordinarily resident in, or citizens of, any Restricted Jurisdictions will not qualify to
participate in the Open Offer and will not be sent an Application Form, nor will their stock
accounts in CREST be credited with Open Offer Entitlements. The Open Offer Shares have
not been, and will not be, registered or qualified by prospectus under the relevant laws of
any Restricted Jurisdictions or any state, province or territory of them and may not be
offered, sold, resold, delivered or distributed, directly or indirectly, in or into any Restricted
Jurisdictions or to, or for the account or benefit of, any person with a registered address in,
or who is located, resident or ordinarily resident in, or a citizen of, any Restricted
Jurisdictions except pursuant to an applicable exemption. Subject to certain exceptions, no
offer of Open Offer Shares is being made by virtue of this document and/or the Application
Form into any Restricted Jurisdictions.

6.4 Jurisdictions other than the Restricted Jurisdictions

Application Forms will be sent to Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders and an Open Offer
Entitlement will be credited to the stock account in CREST of Qualifying
CREST Shareholders. Qualifying Shareholders in jurisdictions other than the United States or
any other Restricted Jurisdiction may, subject to the laws of their relevant jurisdiction, take up
Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer in accordance with the instructions set out in this
document and, if relevant, the Application Form. Qualifying Shareholders who have registered
addresses in or who are located or resident in, or who are citizens of, countries other than
the United Kingdom should consult their professional advisers as to whether they require any
governmental or other consents or need to observe any other formalities to enable them to
apply for Open Offer Shares in respect of the Open Offer.

7. Taxation
If you are in any doubt about your tax position or are subject to a tax in a jurisdiction other than the
United Kingdom, you should consult your professional adviser without delay.

8. Admission, settlement, dealings and publication
Application will be made to the London Stock Exchange for the Open Offer Shares to be admitted
to trading on AIM, subject to the fulfilment of the conditions of the Open Offer. It is expected that
admission of the Open Offer Shares to trading on AIM will become effective and that dealings
therein for normal settlement will commence at 8.00 a.m. on 11 January 2024. In the case of
Qualifying Shareholders wishing to hold Open Offer Shares in certificated form, definitive certificates
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in respect of the Open Offer Shares will be issued free of stamp duty and are expected to be
despatched by post by 18 January 2024. No temporary documents of title will be issued and,
pending such dispatch, transfers will be certified against the share register. Open Offer Entitlements
held in CREST are expected to be disabled in all respects after 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024 (the
latest time and date for applications under the Open Offer). If the conditions to the Open Offer
described in this document are satisfied, Open Offer Shares will be issued in uncertificated form to
those persons who submitted a valid application for Open Offer Shares by utilising the CREST
application procedures and whose applications have been accepted by the Company on the day on
which such conditions are satisfied. On this day, the Receiving Agent will credit the appropriate
stock accounts of such persons with such persons’ entitlement to Open Offer Shares with effect
from Admission (expected to be 11 January 2024). The stock accounts to be credited will be
accounts under the same participant IDs and member account IDs in respect of which the USE
instruction was given. Notwithstanding any other provision of this document, the Company (with the
consent of the Company) reserves the right to send you an Application Form instead of crediting
the relevant stock account with Open Offer Entitlements, and to allot and/or issue any Open Offer
Shares in certificated form. In normal circumstances, this right is only likely to be exercised in the
event of any interruption, failure or breakdown of CREST (or of any part of CREST) or on the part
of the facilities and/or systems operated by the Receiving Agent in connection with CREST.

All documents or remittances sent by or to applicants, or as they may direct, will be sent through
the post at their own risk. For more information as to the procedure for application, Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders are referred to the Application Form. The completion and results of the Open
Offer will be announced and made public through an announcement on a Regulatory Information
Service as soon as possible after the results are known.

9. Governing law
The terms and conditions of the Open Offer as set out in this Part 3 and each Application Form
shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law. The Courts of England and
Wales are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute which may arise out of or in
connection with the Open Offer, this document and an Application Form. By taking up their
entitlements under the Open Offer in accordance with the instructions set out in this document and
(where applicable) an Application Form, Qualifying Shareholders irrevocably submit to the
jurisdiction of the Courts of England and Wales and waive any objection to proceedings in any such
court on the ground of venue or on the ground that proceedings have been brought in an
inconvenient forum.

10. Other information
Your attention is drawn to the letter from your Chairman which is set out in Part 1 of this document
which contains, amongst other things, information on the reasons for the Placement and Open Offer,
to the Risk Factors in Part 2, and to the questions and answers about the Open Offer set out in
Part 3 of this document.

11. Dilution
The share capital of the Company in issue at the date of this document will be increased by
approximately 30 per cent. as a result of the issue of the CIG Second Tranche Shares, Second
Tranche Subscription Shares and the Open Offer Shares (assuming the Open Offer is fully
subscribed). Qualifying Shareholders who take up all of their Open Offer Entitlement will still suffer a
23.2 per cent. dilution upon Admission due to completion of CIG Second Tranche Subscription and
the Second Tranche Subscription. Qualifying Shareholders who do not take up all of their Open
Offer Entitlement will suffer a 24.4 per cent. dilution in their proportionate ownership and voting
interest in the ordinary share capital of the Company as represented by their holding of Ordinary
Shares immediately following Admission.
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PART 4

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE OPEN OFFER

The questions and answers set out in this Part 4 are intended to be in general terms only and, as
such, you should read Part 3 of this document for full details of what action you should take. If you
are in any doubt as to what action you should take, you are recommended to seek your own
personal financial advice immediately from your stockbroker, bank, fund manager, solicitor,
accountant or other appropriate independent financial adviser, who is authorised under the FSMA if
you are resident in the United Kingdom, or, if not, from another appropriately authorised
independent financial adviser.

This Part 4 deals with general questions relating to the CIG Subscription, the Subscription and
Open Offer and more specific questions relating principally to Existing Ordinary Shares held by
persons resident in the United Kingdom who hold their Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form
only. If you are an Overseas Shareholder, you should read paragraph 6 of Part 3 of this document
and you should take professional advice as to whether you are eligible and/or you need to observe
any formalities to enable you to take up your Open Offer Entitlements. If you hold your Existing
Ordinary Shares in uncertificated form (that is, through CREST) you should read Part 3 of this
document for full details of what action you should take. If you are a CREST sponsored member,
you should also consult your CREST sponsor.

The contents of this document should not be construed as legal, business, accounting, tax,
investment or other professional advice. Each prospective investor should consult his, her
or its own appropriate professional advisers for advice. This document is for your
information only and nothing in this document is intended to endorse or recommend a
particular course of action.

1. What is an Open Offer?
An Open Offer is a way for companies to raise money. Companies may do this by giving their
existing shareholders a right to acquire further shares at a fixed price in proportion to their existing
shareholdings (an Open Offer) and providing for specifically identified investors also to subscribe for
a certain number of shares at the same price on a non pre-emptive basis (a subscription).

This Open Offer is an invitation by the Company to Qualifying Shareholders to apply to acquire, in
aggregate, up to 35,516,679 Open Offer Shares at a price of 11.2625 pence per New Ordinary
Share. If you hold Existing Ordinary Shares on the Record Date or have a bona fide market claim,
other than, subject to certain exceptions, where you are a Shareholder with a registered address in,
or located in, the United States or another Restricted Jurisdiction, you will be entitled to apply for
Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer.

The Open Offer is being made on the basis of 1 Open Offer Share for every 12.525 Existing
Ordinary Shares held by Qualifying Shareholders on the Record Date. If your entitlement to
Open Offer Shares is not a whole number, you will not be entitled to buy a fraction of an
Open Offer Share and your entitlement will be rounded down to the nearest whole number.

Applications by Qualifying Shareholders will be satisfied in full up to the amount of their individual
Open Offer Entitlements. Qualifying Shareholders are also being given the opportunity, provided that
they take up their Open Offer Entitlements in full, to apply for additional Open Offer Shares through
the Excess Application Facility.

In addition to the Open Offer various institutional and other investors are subscribing for new
Ordinary Shares at the Issue Price, pursuant to the CIG Second Tranche Subscription and the
Second Tranche Subscription.

Qualifying Shareholders should be aware that the Open Offer is not a rights issue. As such,
Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders should also note that the Application Form is not a
negotiable document and cannot be traded. Qualifying CREST Shareholders should
note that, although the Open Offer Entitlements will be admitted to CREST they will have
limited settlement capabilities (for the purposes of market claims only), and the Open Offer
Entitlements will not be tradable or listed, and applications in respect of the Open Offer
may only be made by the Qualifying Shareholders originally entitled or by a person entitled
by virtue of a bona fide market claim.
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2. Am I eligible to participate in the Subscription?
Unless you are a Subscriber, you will not be eligible to participate in the Subscription.

3. If I participate in the Subscription may I also make an application for Open Offer Shares
No, if you have participated in the Subscription you may not participate in the Open Offer

4. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. How do I know if I am able to apply
to acquire Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer?

If you receive an Application Form and, subject to certain exceptions, are not a holder with a
registered address in or located in the United States or another Restricted Jurisdiction, then you
should be eligible to acquire Open Offer Shares under the Open Offer, as long as you had not sold
all of your Existing Ordinary Shares on or before 8.00 a.m. on 21 December 2023 (the ‘ex’
entitlement date for the Open Offer).

5. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. How do I know how many Open
Offer Shares I am entitled to take up?

If you hold your Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form and, subject to certain exceptions, do
not have a registered address in and are not located in the United States or another Restricted
Jurisdiction, you should be sent an Application Form.

That Application Form will show:

• how many Existing Ordinary Shares you held at close of business on the Record Date;

• how many Open Offer Shares are comprised in your Open Offer Entitlement; and

• how much you need to pay if you want to take up your right to subscribe for all your
entitlement to the Open Offer Shares.

If you have a registered address or are located in the United States or, subject to certain
exceptions, one of the Restricted Jurisdictions, you will not receive an Application Form.

If you would like to apply for any of, all of or more than the Open Offer Shares comprised in your
Open Offer Entitlement you should complete the Application Form in accordance with the
instructions printed on it and the information provided in this document. Please return the completed
form in the reply-paid envelope provided with the Application Form along with a cheque or banker’s
draft for the number of Open Offer Shares you want to apply for and allow at least four Business
Days for delivery if sent by first class post from within the United Kingdom. Please also see
questions 5 and 12 for further help in completing the Application Form.

6. I am a Qualifying Shareholder with a registered address in the UK and I hold my Existing
Ordinary Shares in certificated form. What are my choices in relation to the Open Offer and
what should I do with the Application Form?

6.1 If you want to take up all of your Open Offer Entitlement?
If you want to take up all of the Open Offer Shares to which you are entitled, all you need to do is
send the completed Application Form, together with your cheque or banker’s draft for the amount
(as indicated in Box C of your Application Form), payable to ‘Link Market Services Limited
RE: Hummingbird Resources plc – Open Offer A/C’ and crossed ‘A/C payee only’ in the reply paid
envelope provided, by post to Link Group, Corporate Actions, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street,
Leeds LS1 4DL to arrive by no later than 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024. Within the United
Kingdom only, you can use the reply-paid envelope which is enclosed with the Application Form.
You should allow at least four Business Days for delivery if using first-class post or the reply-paid
envelope within the United Kingdom. If posting from outside the United Kingdom, postage will be
payable when using the reply-paid envelope. Full instructions are set out in Part 3 of this document
and in the Application Form.

6.2 If you want to take up some but not all of your Open Offer Entitlement?
If you want to take up some but not all of you Open Offer Entitlement, you should write the number
of Open Offer Shares you want to take up in Box D of your Application Form; for example, if you
are entitled to take up 1,000 shares but you only want to take up 500 shares, then you should write

43



‘500’ in Box D. To work out how much you need to pay for the Open Offer Shares, you need to
multiply the number of Open Offer Shares you want (in this example ‘500’) by 11.2625 pence,
which is the price of each Open Offer Share (giving you an amount of £56.31 in this example). You
should write this amount in Box G, and this should be the amount your cheque or banker’s draft is
made out for. You should then return your Application Form together with your cheque or banker’s
draft for that amount, payable to ‘Link Market Services Limited RE: Hummingbird Resources plc –
Open Offer A/C’ and crossed ‘A/C payee only’, in the reply-paid envelope provided, by post to Link
Group, Corporate Actions, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL to arrive by no
later than 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024, after which time the Application Form will not be valid.
Within the United Kingdom only, you can use the reply-paid envelope which is enclosed with the
Application Form. You should allow at least four Business Days for delivery if using first-class post
or the reply-paid envelope within the United Kingdom. If posting from outside the United Kingdom,
postage will be payable when using the reply-paid envelope.

Full instructions are set out in Part 3 of this document and in the Application Form. A definitive
share certificate will then be sent to you for the Open Offer Shares that you validly take up. Your
definitive share certificate for such Open Offer Shares is expected to be despatched to you by no
later than 18 January 2024.

6.3 If you want to apply for more than your Open Offer Entitlement?
Provided that you have agreed to take up your Open Offer Entitlement in full, you can apply for
further Excess Shares using the Excess Application Facility. You should write the number of Open
Offer Shares you wish to take up in Box D which must be the number of Open Offer Shares shown
in Box B. You should then write the number of Excess Shares you wish to apply for under the
Excess Application Facility in Box E and then complete Box F by adding together the numbers you
have entered in Boxes D and E.

To work out how much you need to pay for the Open Offer Shares you are applying for, you need
to multiply the number of Open Offer Shares shown in Box F by the Issue Price, which is the price
of each Open Offer Share. You should write this amount in Box G, rounding down to the nearest
whole penny. You should then return your Application Form together with your cheque or banker’s
draft for that amount payable to ‘Link Market Services Limited RE: Hummingbird Resources plc –
Open Offer A/C’ and crossed ‘A/C payee only’, in the reply-paid envelope provided, by post to Link
Group, Corporate Actions, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL, to arrive by no
later than 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024, after which time the Application Form will not be valid.
Within the United Kingdom only, you can use the accompanying reply-paid envelope.

You should allow at least four Business Days for delivery if using first-class post or the reply-paid
envelope within the United Kingdom. If posting from outside the United Kingdom, postage will be
payable when using the reply-paid envelope. Full instructions are set out in the Application Form. If
applications under the Excess Application Facility are received for more than the total number of
Open Offer Shares available following take-up of Open Offer Entitlements, such applications will be
scaled back pro rata to the number of Excess Shares applied for by Qualifying Shareholders under
the Excess Application Facility (or otherwise at the Board’s sole discretion). Therefore, applications
under the Excess Application Facility may not be satisfied in full. In this event, Qualifying
Shareholders will receive a pounds sterling amount equal to the number of Open Offer Shares
applied and paid for by, but not allocated to, the relevant Qualifying Shareholder, multiplied by the
Issue Price. Monies will be returned as soon as reasonably practicable, without payment of interest
and at the applicant’s sole risk.

6.4 If you do not want to take up your Open Offer Entitlement
If you do not want to take up the Open Offer Shares to which you are entitled, you do not need to
do anything. In these circumstances, you will not receive any Open Offer Shares. The Open Offer
Shares you could have taken up will not be issued by the Company to you or for your benefit. You
cannot sell your Application Form or your Open Offer Entitlement to anyone else.

If you are not a Subscriber and you do not take up any of your Open Offer Entitlement, then
following the Placement and Open Offer, your interest in the Company will be diluted, although you
should note that even if a Qualifying Shareholder subscribes for his full entitlement to the Open
Offer Shares, his proportionate interest in the Company will be diluted by the issue of new Ordinary
Shares pursuant to the Placement.

44



7. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in uncertificated form in CREST. What do I need to do in
relation to the Open Offer?

CREST members should follow the instructions set out in Part 3 of this document. Persons who
hold Existing Ordinary Shares through a CREST member should be informed by such CREST
member of the number of Open Offer Shares they are entitled to apply for under their Open Offer
Entitlement and should contact their CREST member should they not receive this information.

8. I acquired my Existing Ordinary Shares prior to the Record Date and hold my Existing
Ordinary Shares in certificated form. What if I do not receive an Application Form or I have
lost my Application Form?

If you do not receive an Application Form, this probably means that you are not eligible to
participate in the Open Offer. Some Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders, however, will not receive
an Application Form but may still be eligible to participate in the Open Offer, namely:

i. Qualifying CREST Shareholders who held their Existing Ordinary Shares in uncertificated form
at 6.00 p.m. on 19 December 2023 and who have converted them to certificated form;

ii. Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders who bought Existing Ordinary Shares before 6.00 p.m. on
19 December 2023 but were not registered as the holders of those shares at the close of
business on 19 December 2023; and

iii. Certain Overseas Shareholders.

If you do not receive an Application Form but think that you should have received one or you have
lost your Application Form, please contact Link Group, on Tel: 0371 664 0321 from the United
Kingdom (UK) or +44 371 664 0321 from overseas. Calls outside the United Kingdom will be
charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are open between 8.30 a.m. – 5.30 p.m., Monday
to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales. Different charges may apply to calls from
mobile telephones and calls may be recorded and randomly monitored for security and training
purposes. The helpline cannot provide advice on the merits of the Open Offer nor give any
financial, legal or tax advice.

9. If I buy Existing Ordinary Shares after the Record Date will I be eligible to participate in the
Open Offer?

If you buy or have bought Existing Ordinary Shares after the Record Date you are unlikely to be
able to participate in the Open Offer in respect of those Existing Ordinary Shares.

If you are in any doubt, please consult your stockbroker, bank or other appropriate financial adviser,
or whoever arranged your share purchase, to ensure you claim your entitlement.

10. What if I change my mind?
If you are a Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder, once you have sent your Application Form and
payment to the Receiving Agent, you cannot withdraw your application or change the number of
Open Offer Shares you have applied for, except in the very limited circumstances which are set out
in paragraph 4 of Part 3 of this document.

11. What if the number of Open Offer Shares to which I am entitled is not a whole number? Am I
entitled to fractions of Open Offer Shares?

Your entitlement to Open Offer Shares will be calculated at the Record Date. If the result is not a
whole number, you will not receive an Open Offer Share in respect of the fraction of each Existing
Ordinary Share and your entitlement will be rounded down to the nearest whole number.

12. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. What should I do if I want to spend
more or less than the amount set out in Box C of the Application Form?

If you want to spend more than the amount set out in Box C you should divide the amount you
want to spend by 11.2625 pence (being the price in pence of each Open Offer Share under the
Open Offer). This will give you the number of Open Offer Shares for which you should apply. You
can only apply for a whole number of Open Offer Shares. For example, if you want to spend £500
you should divide £500 by 11.2625 pence, which comes to 4,439.51. You should round that down
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to 4,439 to give you the number of Open Offer Shares for which, in this example, you can apply
without exceeding your chosen amount. Write the total number of Open Offer Shares (in this
example 4,439) in Box F. To get an accurate amount to put on your cheque or banker’s draft, you
should multiply the whole number of Open Offer Shares you want to apply for (in this example
4,439) by 11.2625 pence and then fill in that amount rounded down to the nearest whole penny (in
this example being £499.94), in Box G and on your cheque or banker’s draft accordingly.

You should note that the number of available Open Offer Shares under the Excess Application
Facility is dependent on the level of take-up of Open Offer Entitlements. If applications are received
for more than the available number of Open Offer Shares, applications made under the Excess
Application Facility will be scaled back pro rata to the number of Excess Shares applied for by
Qualifying Shareholders (or otherwise at the Board’s discretion). Assuming that there are no
Overseas Shareholders who have registered addresses in, or are residents in or citizens of a
Restricted Jurisdiction, and if every Qualifying Shareholder takes up their Open Offer Entitlements in
full there will be no Open Offer Shares available under the Excess Application Facility. Qualifying
Non-CREST Shareholders whose applications under the Excess Application Facility are so scaled
back will receive a pounds sterling amount equal to the number of Open Offer Shares applied and
paid for by, but not allocated to, them multiplied by the Issue Price. Monies will be returned as soon
as reasonably practicable, without payment of interest and at the applicant’s sole risk.

If you want to spend less than the amount set out in Box C, you should divide the amount you want
to spend by 11.2625 pence (being the price, in pence, of each Open Offer Share under the Open
Offer). This will give you the number of Open Offer Shares you should apply for. You can only apply
for a whole number of Open Offer Shares. For example, if you want to spend £100 you should
divide £100 by 11.2625 pence. You should round that down to the nearest whole number (in this
example, 887), to give you the number of shares you want to take up. Write that number (in this
example, 887) in Box D. Then to get an accurate amount to put on your cheque or banker’s draft,
you should multiply the whole number of Open Offer Shares you want to apply for (in this example,
887) by 11.2625 pence and then fill in that amount rounded down to the nearest whole penny (in
this example being £99.90) in Box G and on your cheque or banker’s draft accordingly.

13. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. What should I do if I have sold some
or all of my Existing Ordinary Shares?

If you hold Existing Ordinary Shares directly and you sold some or all of your Existing Ordinary
Shares before or 6.00 p.m. on 19 December 2023, you should contact the buyer or the person/
company through whom you sold your shares. The buyer may be entitled to apply for Open Offer
Shares under the Open Offer. If you sold any of your Existing Ordinary Shares on or after 6.00 p.m.
on 19 December 2023, you may still take up and apply for the Open Offer Shares as set out on
your Application Form.

14. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. How do I pay?
You should return your Application Form with a cheque or banker’s draft drawn in pounds sterling
on a bank or building society account in the UK in the reply-paid envelope enclosed (from within
the United Kingdom). You should allow at least four Business Days for delivery if using first-class
post or the reply paid envelope within the United Kingdom. Cheques should be drawn on a sole or
joint personal account of the Qualifying Shareholder who is applying for the Open Offer Shares. The
funds should be made payable to ‘Link Market Services Limited RE: Hummingbird Resources plc –
Open Offer A/C’. In each case, the cheque should be crossed ‘A/C Payee only’. Payments via
CHAPS, BACS or electronic transfer will not be accepted. Third party cheques may not be
accepted with the exception of banker’s drafts or building society cheques where the bank or
building society has confirmed the name of the account holder (which must be the same name as
appears on page 1 of the Application Form) on the back of the draft or cheque and have added
their branch stamp.

15. Will the Existing Ordinary Shares that I hold now be affected by the Open Offer?
If you decide not to apply for any of the Open Offer Shares to which you are entitled under the
Open Offer, or only apply for some of your entitlement, your proportionate ownership and voting
interest in the Company will be reduced (in addition to the reduction caused by the CIG Second
Tranche Subscription and the Second Tranche Subscription).
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16. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. Where do I send my Application
Form?

You should send your completed Application Form and monies by post in the enclosed reply paid
envelope (from within the United Kingdom) by post to Link Group, Corporate Actions, Central
Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL. You should allow at least four Business Days for
delivery if using first class post or the reply-paid envelope within the United Kingdom. If you do not
want to take up or apply for Open Offer Shares then you need take no further action.

17. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. When do I have to decide if I want to
apply for Open Offer Shares?

The Receiving Agent must receive your completed Application Form and cheque or banker’s draft
by 11.00 a.m. on 9 January 2024. You should allow at least four Business Days for delivery if using
first-class post or the reply-paid envelope included with the Application Form, within the United
Kingdom.

18. I hold my Existing Ordinary Shares in certificated form. If I take up my entitlements, when
will I receive the certificate representing my Open Offer Shares?

It is expected that the Registrars will post all Open Offer Share certificates by 18 January 2024.

19. What should I do if I think my holding of Existing Ordinary Shares (as shown in Box A on
page 1 of the Application Form) is incorrect?

If you bought or sold Existing Ordinary Shares shortly before the Record Date, your transaction may
not have been entered on the register of members before the Record Date for the Open Offer. If
you bought Existing Ordinary Shares before 6.00 p.m. on 19 December 2023 but were not
registered as the holder of those shares on the Record Date for the Open Offer (6.00 p.m. on
19 December 2023), you may still be eligible to participate in the Open Offer. If you are in any
doubt, please contact your stockbroker, bank or other appropriate financial adviser, or whoever
arranged your share purchase, to ensure you claim your entitlement. You will not be entitled to
Open Offer Entitlements in respect of any Existing Ordinary Shares acquired on or after 6.00 p.m.
on 19 December 2023.

20. Will the Placement and/or Open Offer affect dividends (if any) on the Existing Ordinary
Shares?

The New Ordinary Shares will, when issued and fully paid, rank equally in all respects with Existing
Ordinary Shares, including the right to receive all dividends or other distributions made, paid or
declared, if any, by reference to a record date after the date of their issue.

21. Will I be taxed if I take up my entitlements?
Shareholders who are in any doubt as to their tax position or who may be subject to tax in any
other jurisdiction are strongly recommended to consult their own professional advisers.

22. What should I do if I live outside the United Kingdom?
Your ability to apply to acquire Open Offer Shares may be affected by the laws of the country in
which you live and you should take professional advice as to whether you require any governmental
or other consents or need to observe any other formalities to enable you to take up your Open
Offer Entitlement. Shareholders with registered addresses or who are located in the United States
or another Restricted Jurisdiction are, subject to certain exceptions, not eligible to participate in the
Open Offer. Your attention is drawn to the information in paragraph 6 of Part 3 of this document.

23. How do I transfer my entitlements into the CREST system?
If you are a Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder, but are a CREST member and want your Open
Offer Shares to be in uncertificated form, you should complete the CREST deposit form (Box O on
page 4 of the Application Form), and ensure they are delivered to CCSS (the CREST Courier and
Sorting Service, established by Euroclear to facilitate, inter alia, the deposit and withdrawal of
certificated securities) in accordance with the instructions in the Application Form. CREST
sponsored members should arrange for their CREST sponsors to do this. If you have transferred
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your rights into the CREST system, you should refer to paragraph 4.2.6 of Part 3 of this document
for details on how to apply and pay for the Open Offer Shares.

24. Do I need to comply with the Money Laundering Regulations (as set out in paragraph 5 of
Part 3 of this document)?

If you are a Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder, you may not need to follow these procedures if
you pay for them by a cheque drawn on an account in your own name and that account is one
which is held with an EU or United Kingdom regulated bank or building society. If you are a
Qualifying CREST Shareholder, you will not generally need to comply with the Money Laundering
Regulations unless you apply to take up all or some of your entitlement to Open Offer Entitlements
as agent for one or more persons and you are not an EU or United Kingdom regulated financial
institution. Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders and Qualifying CREST Shareholders should refer to
paragraph 5 of Part 3 of this document for a fuller description of the requirements of the Money
Laundering Regulations.
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PART 5

THE TAKEOVER CODE

1. TAKEOVER CODE
The Company is subject to the Takeover Code. Under Rule 9 of the Takeover Code, any person
who acquires an interest (as defined in the Takeover Code) in shares which, taken together with
shares in which he is already interested and in which persons acting in concert with him are
interested, carry 30 per cent. or more of the voting rights of a company which is subject to the
Takeover Code, is normally required to make a general offer to all other shareholders to acquire
their shares.

Similarly, when any person, together with persons acting in concert with him, is interested in shares
which in aggregate carry not less than 30 per cent. of the voting rights of such a company, but
does not hold shares carrying more than 50 per cent. of such voting rights, a general offer will
normally be required if any further interest in shares is acquired by any such person, or persons
acting in concert with him, which increases the percentage of shares carrying voting rights held by
such persons.

An offer under Rule 9 must be made in cash and at the highest price paid by the person required
to make the offer, or any person acting in concert with him, for any interest in shares of the
company during the 12 months prior to the announcement of the general offer.

2. RULE 9 WAIVER RESOLUTION
The issuance of CIG Second Tranche Shares to CIG will result in CIG being interested in shares
carrying 30 per cent. or more of the Company’s voting share capital but not holding shares carrying
more than 50 per cent. of such voting rights. As a result of the issue of the CIG Second Tranche
Shares to CIG, GIG will be interested in between approximately 40.2 per cent. and 42.0 per cent.
of the Company’s voting capital, dependent on the level of acceptances for the Open Offer.

The Takeover Panel has agreed, however, to waive the obligation on CIG to make a general offer
(“Rule 9 Panel Waiver”) that would otherwise arise as a result of the issue of the CIG Second
Tranche Shares to CIG, subject to the approval, on a poll, of the Independent Shareholders.
Accordingly, the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution is being proposed in respect of the CIG Second Tranche
Shares to be issued to CIG at the General Meeting, and each will be taken on a poll.

CIG will not vote on the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution.

Any further increase in CIG’s interests in the Ordinary Shares will be subject to the provisions of
Rule 9.

3. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE RULE 9 WAIVER RESOLUTION
In considering your voting decisions in relation to the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution, you are referred to
the risks set out below. Only those risks relating to the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution which are material
and currently known to the Company are set out below:

• The Independent Shareholders should note that, if the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution is approved
and, as a result of the issuance of the CIG Second Tranche Shares to CIG, CIG’s aggregate
shareholding in the Company is increased and CIG may be able to exercise greater control
over the conduct of the Company than is currently already the case.

• The Independent Shareholders should note that, if the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution is approved,
this does not provide any guarantee that in any future situation where Rule 9 of the Takeover
Code becomes relevant to the Company the Takeover Panel would be similarly willing to grant
a waiver.

• In the event that the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution is not passed by the Independent Shareholders
then the funding to be provided to the Company in respect of the subscription for the New
Ordinary Shares will not be forthcoming and none of the CIG Second Tranche Subscription,
the Second Tranche Subscription or the Open Offer will proceed. Accordingly, the Company’s
ability to fulfil its working capital requirements essential for sustaining its ongoing operations
will be compromised. This potential outcome is expected to lead to adverse effects and delays
in the ramp-up of operations at the Kouroussa Gold Mine in Guinea. Furthermore, the
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operational setback may hinder the Company’s ability to fulfil its financial commitments to
creditors and service providers, adding another layer of challenge to its financial stability and
overall business operations. The Company may therefore be forced into seeking capital from
elsewhere, of which there is no guarantee it will be available on commercial terms or at all.

Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to the Company, or that the Company
currently deems to be immaterial, may also have an adverse effect on the Company.
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PART 6

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

1 RESPONSIBILITY

1.1 The Directors, whose names are set out on page 9 of this document, accept responsibility for
the information (including any expressions of opinion) contained in this document, other than
information for which responsibility is taken pursuant to paragraph 1.1 of Part 7. To the best of
the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that
such is the case), the information (including any expressions of opinion) contained in this
document for which they accept responsibility is in accordance with the facts and does not
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

2 INTERESTS AND DEALINGS
2.1 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date CIG holds 192,142,799 of the

voting rights in the capital of the Company, amounting to 29.999 per cent. of the total voting
rights in the Company.

2.2 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Company, the
Directors, their immediate families or persons connected with them, or acting in concert with
them have any interests, rights to subscribe in the share capital of CIG.

2.3 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date, the interests, rights to subscribe
and short positions of the Directors, their immediate families and persons connected with them
in the share capital of the Company, together with any options in respect of such share capital
(all of which holdings are beneficially held unless otherwise stated), required to be notified to
the Company or which are required to be entered into the Company’s Shareholder register,
are as set out below:

Director Number of Ordinary Shares Percentage of voting rights

Dan Betts 5,734,149 0.90
Thomas Hill 491,574 0.08
Stephen Betts 2,998,601 0.47
David Straker-Smith N/A N/A
Attie Roux N/A N/A
Ernie Nutter N/A N/A

2.4 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors held the following
options:

Director No Of Options held

Percentage of voting rights
represented by options,
assuming full exercise

Dan Betts 13,874,188 2.08
Thomas Hill 9,119,991 1.37
Stephen Betts 698,720* 0.10
David Straker-Smith 698,720* 0.10
Attie Roux 698,720* 0.10
Ernie Nutter 698,720* 0.10

—————
* Deferred Shares as defined in paragraph 2.5 below

2.5 In recognition of the significant experience and the high level of personal commitment of the
Non-executive Directors, each Non-executive Director received an annual deferred share award
(“Deferred Shares”) with a value of £25,000, vesting one year from award date. These awards
must be retained until the individual ceases to hold office, each of the NEDs hold 698,720
Deferred Shares.

2.6 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date and save as disclosed in
paragraph 2.2 above, none of (i) the Company, (ii) the Directors; (iii) any of the Directors’
immediate families or related trusts; (iv) the pension funds of the Company or its subsidiary
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undertakings; (v) any employee benefit trust of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings;
(vi) any connected adviser to the Company or its subsidiary undertakings or any person acting
in concert with the Directors; (vii) any person controlling, controlled by or under the same
control as any connected adviser falling within (vi) above (except for an exempt principal trader
or an exempt fund manager); nor (viii) any other person acting in concert with the Company;
owns or controls, has a short position, or has borrowed or lent, or is interested in, or has any
right to subscribe for, or any arrangement concerning, directly or indirectly, any relevant
securities of the Company.

2.7 Save as announced by the Company on 28 February 2023, 10 March 2023 and 31 March
2023, none of the Directors, nor any member of their immediate families or related trusts (so
far as the Directors are aware having made due enquiry), dealt in relevant securities of the
Company during the 12 months prior to the Latest Practicable Date.

2.8 Neither the Company nor any of the Directors nor any member of their immediate families or
related trusts, owns or controls or is interested, directly or indirectly in or has any short
position in CIG or any securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, rights to subscribe for
and options (including traded options) in respect of, and derivatives referenced to, any of the
foregoing.

2.9 No management incentivisation arrangements have been discussed between members of the
Company’s management and CIG.

2.10 Other than CIG there are no shareholders with a direct or indirect interest or potential interest
in more than 5 per cent. voting rights in the Company.

3 DIRECTORS’ SERVICES AGREEMENT AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
3.1 Interim Executive Chairman and CEO

Dan Betts is currently employed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and is the Interim
Executive Chairman. His employment is governed by the terms of a service agreement with
the Company dated 01 February 2023. The notice period required to terminate his
employment is 12 months’ written notice by the Company or 12 months’ written notice by Dan
Betts. The Company reserves the right under the service agreement, exercisable in its
absolute discretion, to terminate Dan Betts employment and make a payment in lieu of the
notice required by the agreement or any unexpired part of such notice. If Dan Betts commits
any fundamental breach of the service agreement, such as failing, after due and proper
warning, to perform his duties competently, the Company may terminate the agreement without
any notice or payment in lieu thereof. In addition to basic salary of £388,000, he is also
entitled to benefits, which include a discretionary bonus of such amount as may be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion. Dan Betts is also entitled to out-of-pocket expenses
reasonably incurred by him in the proper performance of his duties.

3.2 Finance Director
Tom Hill is currently employed as Finance Director of the Company. His employment is
governed by the terms of a service agreement with the Company dated 02 August 2010. The
notice period required to terminate his employment is 12 months’ written notice by the
Company or 12 months’ written notice by Tom Hill. The Company reserves the right under the
service agreement, exercisable in its absolute discretion, to terminate Tom Hill employment
and make a payment in lieu of the notice required by the agreement or any unexpired part of
such notice. If Tom Hill commits any fundamental breach of the service agreement, such as
failing, after due and proper warning, to perform his duties competently, the Company may
terminate the agreement without any notice or payment in lieu thereof. In addition to basic
salary of £250,000, he is also entitled to benefits, which include discretionary bonus of such
amount as may be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion. Tom Hill is also entitled
to out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by him in the proper performance of his duties.

Tom Hill’s service agreement was entered into on 02 August 2010 and amended with effect
from 01 February 2023 such that his annual salary was increased to £250,000, and with effect
from 01 November 2023 such that his notice period was amended to 12 months.
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3.3 Other than as described in paragraph 3.2 above, no service contracts have been entered into
or amended within 6 months of the date of this document.

3.4 Non-Executive Directors
All of the other Directors are non-executive and do not have service contracts with the
Company. Instead, the Directors were appointed pursuant to letters of appointment as set out
in the below table.

Name Contract date Fees (£) Notice Period

Stephen Betts 28 April 2006 50,000 1 month
David Straker-Smith 24 May 2017 65,000 1 month
Attie Roux 30 April 2018 50,000 1 month
Ernie Nutter 30 April 2018 60,000 1 month

Each of the non-executive Director appointments can be terminated in accordance with the
Articles and without compensation. The Articles provide that the office of Director shall be
terminated by, among other things: written resignation, unauthorised absences from board
meetings for six consecutive months or more; or written request of all of the other Directors.

3.5 Other than as described above, no letters of appointment have been entered into or amended
within 6 months of the date of this document.

4 MATERIAL CONTRACTS
There are no contracts (not being in the ordinary course of business) entered into by the
Company or any member of the Group in the two years immediately preceding the date of this
document which are, or may be, material or which contain any provision under which the
Company or any member of the Group has any obligation or entitlement which is, or may be,
material to the Company as at the date of this document save as follows:

4.1 CIG Agreements

(a) By way of a subscription agreement between CIG and the Company dated 6 February
2023, CIG subscribed for, in aggregate 157,084,808 Ordinary Shares (February Shares”)
in two tranches for a total consideration of US$15 million (representing a price of
7.79 pence per Ordinary Share). The terms of the subscription agreement include:

• an undertaking by CIG that it will not (save in limited circumstances) dispose of the
February Shares for a period of 12 months from the date on which they were
admitted to AIM; and

• the grant to CIG of a pre-emption right in relation to further equity issued by the
Company while it holds 20 per cent. or more of the Ordinary Shares.

(b) By way of a relationship agreement between CIG, the Company and Strand Hanson
dated 7 February agreement CIG gave certain undertakings which imposes certain
obligations on CIG in its position as a substantial shareholder (as defined under the AIM
Rules) in the Company to ensure that the Company will at all times be capable of
carrying on its business independently of CIG and the members of its group. The
relationship agreement remains in force for so long as CIG’s holding remains at 10 per
cent. or above of the Company’s issued share capital.

(c) Details of the CIG Subscription Agreement are set out in paragraph 4 of Part 1 of this
document.

4.2 Other Subscription Agreements

In addition to the CIG Subscription Agreement, the Company has entered into subscription
agreements with certain other subscribers, pursuant to the Subscription for, in aggregate
17,506,374 Subscription Shares at the Issue Price, of which 3,518,814 have been issued
pursuant to the First Tranche Subscription and the remaining 13,987,560 remain to be issued
pursuant to the Second Tranche Subscription. Payment for the First Tranche Subscription
Shares has been made, and payment for the Second Tranche Subscription Share is to be
made no later than midday on 9 January 2024
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Certain of the Subscribers (including, as noted herein, CIG) subscribing for, in aggregate
181,099,280 Subscription Shares, have agreed that they will not dispose of such Subscription
Shares for a period of 12 months from the date of their admission to trading on AIM.

4.3 Agreement with Pasofino Gold Limited

By way of a share exchange agreement dated 8 December 2023 (“SEA”) between the
Company, Pasofino Gold Limited (“Pasofino”) and ARX Resources Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Pasofino (“ARX”), the Company has converted its 51 per cent. interest in the
Dugbe Gold Project, Liberia (the “Project”), into a 51 per cent. controlling shareholding interest
in TSX-V listed Pasofino, resulting in Pasofino (through ARX) becoming the sole owner of the
Project, subject to the 10 per cent. carried interest of the Government of Liberia. In
consideration for the ownership conversion, Pasofino has issued 54,027,783 new common
shares to the Company, resulting in the Company holding a 51 per cent. shareholding interest
in Pasofino, and Pasofino being classified as a subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the
SEA the Company is entitled to appoint three members to the board of Pasofino.

4.4 Banking Facility Arrangements with Coris Bank

Part 8 of this document set out details of the Group’s banking facility arrangements with Coris
Bank

5 MIDDLE MARKET QUOTATIONS

The table below sets out the middle market quotations for an Ordinary Share, as derived from
the AIM appendix to the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List, on the first business day
of each of the six months preceding the date of this document and for the Latest Practicable
Date:

Date

Price per
Ordinary

Share

3 July 2023 12.88
1 August 2023 11.75
1 September 2023 12.60
2 October 2023 8.10
1 November 2023 9.75
1 December 2023 12.50
Latest Practicable Date 10.50

6 IRREVOCABLE UNDERTAKINGS
6.1 Director irrevocable undertakings

The Company has received an irrevocable undertakings from each of Stephen Betts, Dan
Betts and Tom Hill to vote in favour of the Resolutions at the General Meeting in respect of
their own beneficial holdings amounting to in aggregate 9,224,324 Ordinary Shares,
representing approximately 1.44 per cent. of the existing issued ordinary share capital of the
Company. The irrevocable undertakings include undertakings to:

(a) until the conclusion of the General Meeting, not deal in the relevant Ordinary Shares or
any interest in all or any of them or permit any dealing, nor enter into any agreement or
arrangement (whether conditional or not) to deal, nor accept (or permit to be accepted)
any offer in respect of all or any of such Ordinary Shares;

(b) continue to control the relevant Ordinary Shares at least until the conclusion of the
General Meeting;

(c) vote, or procure to vote, in favour of the Resolutions at the General Meeting; and

(d) not take any action which is inconsistent with the express terms of the irrevocable
undertaking.

The obligations of each of Stephen Betts, Dan Betts and Tom Hill shall be irrevocable until the
date falling three months from the date of their irrevocable undertaking.
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6.2 Shareholder intentions to vote
(a) The Company has received an irrevocable undertaking from CIG to vote in favour of the

Resolutions (other than the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution, in respect of which it may not
vote) at the General Meeting in respect of, in aggregate, 192,142,799 Ordinary Shares
representing approximately 29.999 per cent. of the existing issued ordinary share capital
of the Company:

The irrevocable undertaking given by CIG include undertakings to:

• until the conclusion of the General Meeting, not deal in the relevant Ordinary Shares
or any interest in all or any of them or permit any dealing, nor enter into any
agreement or arrangement (whether conditional or not) to deal, nor accept (or
permit to be accepted) any offer in respect of all or any of such Ordinary Shares;

• continue to control the relevant Ordinary Shares at least until the conclusion of the
General Meeting;

• vote, or procure to vote, in favour of the Resolutions at the General Meeting; and

• not take any action which is inconsistent with the express terms of the irrevocable
undertaking.

(b) The Company has received confirmations from certain other key shareholders (who
between them hold 2.55 per cent. of the Existing Share Capital that they intend to vote in
favour of the Resolutions at the General Meeting.

7 INCORPORATION OF RELEVANT INFORMATION BY REFERENCE

7.1 The following documents (or parts of documents), which have been filed with the Takeover
Panel and are available for inspection in accordance with paragraph 11 of this Part 6, contain
information about the Company, which is relevant to this document.

Source document from
which information is
incorporated into this
document by reference Information incorporated by reference

Page
number(s)
in source
document

Audited financial
statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020

Independent Auditor’s Report 74
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 79
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 80
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 81
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 82
Notes to the Financial Statements 83

Audited financial
statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report 80
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 86
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 87
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 88
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 89
Notes to the Financial Statements 90

Audited financial
statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report 100
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 105
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 106
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 107
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 108
Notes to the Financial Statements 109

Unaudited interim financial
statements for the six
months to 30 June 2023

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 4
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 5
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 7
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 6
Notes to the condensed Group interim financial
statements

9
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7.2 A copy of each of the documents incorporated by reference into this document is available,
free of charge, for downloading or inspection at https://www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk/
investors/reports-presentations/a1682590946812-45a876f2-0ee9. Neither the contents of the
Company’s website, nor any website directly or indirectly linked to this website, are
incorporated in, or form part of, this document.

7.3 Shareholders or other recipients of this document may request copies of the information
incorporated by reference from the Company at its registered office at 49-63 Spencer Street,
Hockley, Birmingham, West Midlands, B18 6DE, or by telephone at +44 (0)20 7409 6660.
Hard copies of the information incorporated by reference will not be sent to Shareholders or
other recipients of this document unless so requested.

7.4 Save as set out above in this document, neither the contents of the Company’s website, nor
the contents of any website accessible from hyperlinks on the Company’s website, is
incorporated into, or forms part of, this document.

8 GENERAL
8.1 The Company was incorporated as Hamsard 2843 Limited in England and Wales on 31 May

2005 with company number 05467327. On 3 November 2005 the Company changed its name
to Hummingbird Resources Limited and on 3 December 2005 it registered as a public limited
company with the name Hummingbird Resources plc.

8.2 The Ordinary Shares were admitted to trading on AIM on 10 December 2010.

8.3 The Company is multi-asset, multi-jurisdiction gold producer with operations in Africa.

9 CURRENT TRADING, FUTURE PROSPECTS AND RATINGS
9.1 The Company currently has two core gold projects, the operational Yanfolila Gold Mine in Mali,

and the Kouroussa Gold Mine in Guinea, which will more than double current gold production
in FY2024 once ramp up to commercial production has been completed in early FY2024.
Further, the Company has an indirect controlling interest in the Dugbe Gold Project in Liberia
that is being developed by joint venture partners, Pasofino Gold Limited. The final feasibility
results on Dugbe showcase 2.76Moz in Reserves and strong economics such as a 3.5-year
capex payback period once in production, and a 14-year life of mine at a low AISC profile.
Our vision is to continue to grow our asset base, producing profitable ounces, while central to
all we do being our Environmental, Social & Governance policies and practices.

9.2 The Board notes that CIG does not have any strategic plans for the Company and has no
intentions to make any changes to the business of the Company and therefore the Board does
not believe that the implementation of the Proposals as described in this document will have
any repercussions on employees of the Company and the locations of the Company’s places
of business.

9.3 Save as disclosed in this document, there has been no significant change in the financial or
trading position of the Group since 30 June 2023, being the date to which the unaudited
interim financial information for the Group was prepared. There are no current public ratings or
outlooks accorded to the Company by ratings agencies.

10 CONSENT
In connection with the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution and in order to comply with the requirements
of the Code, Strand Hanson has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue
of this document with the references to it in the form and context in which they appear.

11 DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION
Copies of the following documents will be published on the Company’s website at https://
www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk/investors/reports-presentations/ and will be available for
inspection on request by a Shareholder, person with information rights, or other person to
whom this document is sent at the Company’s registered office at 49-63 Spencer Street,
Hockley, Birmingham, West Midlands, B18 6DE during normal business hours on any weekday
(Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays in the UK excepted) from the date of this document
until the conclusion of the General Meeting:
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(a) the Irrevocable Undertakings;

(b) the CIG Subscription Agreement;

(c) copies of the material contacts disclosed in paragraph 4 of Part 6

(d) the Articles;

(e) the consent referred to in paragraph 10 above;

(f) the Company’s audited financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2020,
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 and unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2023; and

(g) this document and the Form of Proxy.
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PART 7

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CIG

1 RESPONSIBILITY
1.1 For the purposes of Rule 19.2 of the Takeover Code only, the CIG Directors (whose names

are set out in paragraph 2.5 of this Part 7) accept responsibility for the information (including
any expressions of opinion) contained in this document in relation to the CIG. To the best of
their knowledge and belief (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case),
the information (including any expressions of opinion) contained in this document for which
they accept responsibility is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import of such information.

2 INFORMATION ON CIG
2.1 CIG is not considered, as at the date of this document, to be acting in concert with any other

party.

2.2 As at the Latest Practicable Date, CIG holds 192,142,799 Ordinary Shares, representing
approximately 29.999 per cent. of the Company’s existing issued share capital.

CIG is a private company limited by shares and is registered in the Trade and Personal
Property Credit Register of Burkina Faso incorporated on 5 April 2019. Mr. Idrissa Nassa, as
sole shareholder of CIG, holds 100 per cent of its issued share capital. In addition, Mr. Idrissa
Nassa holds a 98 per cent. interest in Coris Holdings, which in turn has a 63.61 per cent.
interest in Coris Bank. Mr Idrissa also holds, in his personal name, an interest of 1.29 per
cent. in Coris Bank and so has an effective interest in Coris Bank of 63.6 per cent. Coris
Bank is the Company’s primary banking partner, with details of the various facilities in place
with Coris Bank set out in Part 8 of this document.

CIG’s aim is to offer the services of an investment bank and a merchant bank with a focus on
innovative solutions in line with the financing needs of companies and institutions with high
local added value and capable of develop a profitable and sustainable business. CIG
specializes in investment, strategy and consulting. Currently, CIG has US$100 million of
investments and fixed assets.

CIG is not required to publish financial information and there is no financial information relating
to CIG that is publicly available. There are no current ratings or outlooks publicly accorded to
CIG by ratings agencies.

CIG intends to finance the CIG Second Tranche Subscription with internal cash resources and,
as at 30 June 2023, had a total asset position of c. US$215 million, including cash and cash
equivalents of c. US$71 million and shareholder equity position of c. US$57 million. For the six
months ended 30 June 2023, CIG reported turnover of c. US$28.5 million, and net income of
c. $8 million

Mr. Idrissa Nassa

Mr. Nassa is an economist by training, with over 35 years experience in the financial,
insurance, international trade and industrial sectors. He is a graduate of INTEC in Paris, and
also holds a higher diploma in Management from the AMP programme at the MDE/IESE
Business Scholle in Barcelona, and a diploma in Management and Strategy from the
University of Paris Panthéon Sorbonne and the Hautes Finances from the IFG Executive
Education INSEEC Paris.

He has received various recognitions in the countries where Coris Bank International
subsidiaries or branches are present, including the African CEO of the Year 2020 by Financial
Afrik Awards, the rank of Grand Officer of the Order of the Stallion (Burkina Faso) in 2019, the
African Entrepreneur of the Year Award 2019 by AGFRICANGELS, the Trophy of Excellence
awarded by CAVIE (African Centre for Economic Intelligence and Monitoring) and the Special
Award “BRVM” and “DC&BR” (Senegal) in 2022.

Mr Nassa is Chairman of Coris Bank and President of Burkinabé Employers’ Association.
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2.3 CIG’s registered office address, and primary place of business is Avenue de l’UEMOA,
2cmeetage of the building built on plot N°10 of lot 20section 006 ZACA, 01 BP 2061
Ouagadougou 01, Burkina Faso.

2.4 CIG is a company specialized in investment, strategy and consulting. The intention of CIG is to
invest in the Company is in line with their investment strategy, which is to offer the services of
an investment bank with a focus on innovative solutions in line with the financing needs of
companies with high added value and capable of develop a profitable and sustainable
business.

2.5 The directors, registered office and other incorporation information of the members of the CIG
are as follows:

Directors Mr. Bolo SANOU
Mr. Idrissa NASSA
Mr. Talekaye ROMBA
Mr. Diakarya OUATIARA
Mr. Ablasse ILBOUDO

Address Avenue de l’UEMOA, 2cmeetage of the building built on plot
N°10 of lot 20 section 006 ZACA, 01 BP 2061 Ouagadougou
01, Burkina Faso

Place of Registration Burkina Faso

Registered Number BF OUA 2019 B 2606

2.6 The CIG Subscription is not expected to have a material effect on CIG’s earnings, assets or
liabilities.

3 MATERIAL CONTRACTS
3.1 There are no contracts (not being entered into in the ordinary course of business) entered into

by CIG within the two years immediately preceding the date of this document which are, or
may be, material or which contain any provision under which CIG has any obligation or
entitlement which is or may be material as at the date of this document.

4 INTENTIONS OF CIG
4.1 CIG has confirmed that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding for the transfer

of their Ordinary Shares to any third party and that it will be the beneficial owner of the CIG
Subscription Shares.

4.2 CIG has confirmed that there are no agreements, arrangements or understandings of any kind
(including any compensation arrangement) existing between CIG and any other person, save
for the CIG Subscription Agreement and the Relationship Agreement, details of which are set
out in paragraph 4 of Part 1 of this document.

4.3 CIG has no intention of making any changes in relation to:

• the continued employment of the Company’s employees and management, including any
material change in the conditions of employment or in the balance of the skills and
functions of the employees and management;

• the locations of the Company’s places of business;

• employer contributions into the Company’s pension scheme and the admission of new
members;

• the redeployment of any fixed assets of the Company; or

• the maintenance of any existing trading facilities for the relevant securities including the
maintenance and continued admission of the Company’s Ordinary Shares to trading on
AIM.

4.4 CIG does not intend to change its own current business strategy as a result of the Proposals.
CIG is a company specialised in investment, strategy and consulting. The intention of CIG
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investing in the Company is in line with its investment strategy, which is to offer the services of
an investment bank with a focus on innovative solutions in line with the financing needs of
companies with high added value and capable of develop a profitable and sustainable
business.

4.5 With regard to strategic plans for the Company, CIG does not intend to make any changes
save to help realise the Company’s aim of building a Best in Class mining company, focusing
on producing profitable production ounces to deliver the best value possible for its
shareholders, whilst having total commitment to operating in an environmentally and socially
responsible manner.

4.6 With regard to the future of the business of the Company CIG has no intention to make any
changes, other than to help accelerate the growth strategy of the Company, increase
exploration, and strengthen its balance sheet to provide capital support for the Group’s
operations.

4.7 If the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution is passed at the General Meeting, CIG will not be restricted
from making an offer for the Company, subject its contractual undertaking in the CIG
Subscription Agreement not to make an offer without the recommendation of the Board, save
where an offer is announced or made by a third party to acquire the whole of the issued
share capital of the Company.

5 EFFECT OF THE ISSUE OF THE CIG SECOND TRANCHE SHARES ON THE INTERESTS OF
THE CIG

5.1 In the event that CIG is issued the CIG Second Tranche Shares at the Issue Price, CIG will be
interested in 334,665,274 Ordinary Shares, holding between 40.2 per cent. and 42.0 per cent.
of the Enlarged Share Capital, dependent on the level of acceptances under the Open Offer.

6 INTERESTS AND DEALINGS
6.1 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date, save as set out in paragraph 5

above, neither CIG nor any CIG Directors nor any members of their immediate families, any
related trust, nor any connected persons (within the meaning of section 252 of the Companies
Act), nor any person acting in concert with such persons nor any member of their immediate
families or related trusts (so far as the Directors are aware having made due enquiry) had
interests, rights to subscribe and short positions in the relevant shares or securities of the
Company.

6.2 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date, the interests of CIG in the relevant
share or securities of the Company was 29.999 per cent.

6.3 As at the close of business on the Latest Practicable Date and save as disclosed in this
document, neither CIG nor any CIG Directors nor any members of their immediate families,
any related trust, nor any connected persons (within the meaning of section 252 of the
Companies Act), nor any person acting in concert with such persons, owns or controls, or has
borrowed or lent, or is interested in, or has any right to subscribe for, or any arrangement
concerning, directly or indirectly, any relevant shares or securities of the Company, or has any
short position (whether conditional or absolute and whether in the money or otherwise),
including a short position under a derivative, any agreement to sell or any delivery obligation in
respect of any right to require any person to purchase or take delivery of, any such relevant
shares or securities of the Company.

6.4 Neither CIG nor any CIG Directors nor any members of their immediate families, any related
trust, nor any connected persons (within the meaning of section 252 of the Companies Act)
nor any person acting in concert with such persons has dealt in relevant securities during the
12-month period before the Latest Practicable Date, other than:

(a) the subscription by CIG, pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 6 February 2023,
for (in aggregate) 157,084,808 new Ordinary Shares at 7.79 pence per Ordinary Share
(an aggregate consideration of US$15 million), of which 39,360,800 were issued and
allotted on 10 February 2023 and the balance of 117,724,008 were issued and allotted
on 14 March 2023; and
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(b) the CIG First Tranche Subscription pursuant to which the CIG First Tranche Subscription
Shares were issued and allotted to CIG on 12 December 2023.

6.5 CIG has not entered into any agreement, arrangement or understanding with any of the
Directors which has any connection with or dependence upon the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution. In
addition, save as disclosed above, there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding
having any connection with or dependence upon the Rule 9 Waiver Resolution between CIG
and any person interested or recently interested in shares in the Company, or any other recent
director of the Company.
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PART 8

BANKING FACILITIES WITH CORIS BANK

a. Coris Loan CFA 38,500,000,000 (approximately $70,000,000)

On 4 November 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, Société des Mines de Komana SA (“SMK”) entered
into a senior secured term debt facility with Coris Bank for CFA 38,500,000,000 (approximately
$70,000,000 before any fees). In December 2021, the full amount was drawn down. The debt
facility has the following key terms:

– 4-year term.

– Interest at 8.5% per annum (payable quarterly).

– Principal deferral period of 18 months from first draw down, payable quarterly thereon.

b. Coris financing package CFA up to 26,500,000,000 (approximately $35,000,000)

In September 2022, SMK entered a financing package with Coris Bank of up to
CFA 26,500,000,000 (approximately $35,000,000) excluding fees to support the Group’s liquidity
whilst it brings the Kouroussa Project into production.

This financing package was then split and drawn down as follows:

– In September 2022, SMK drew down on an initial CFA 10,000,000,000 (approximately
$15,000,000) of this facility before any fees. This short-term debt facility is available for an
initial one-year period from draw down date and carries interest at 9% per annum.

– In December, SMK drew down on another CFA 2,500,000,000 ($3.9 million at date of
drawdown) of this facility. This CFA 2.5 billion draw down is available for an initial six-month
period from 28 December 2022, and carrying an interest of 9% per annum.

– In early 2023, SMK drew down on the remaining balance of this financing package. This short-
term debt facility is available for an initial one-year period from draw down date and carries
interest at 9% per annum.

c. Coris refinancing package CFA up to 32,700,000,000 (approximately $55,000,000)

In September 2023 the Company agreed a Group funding package with Coris Bank for
c.US$55 million including;

– Refinancing c.US$35 million of existing loans with Coris, to provide additional cash flow
flexibility as Kouroussa progresses towards steady state production.

– An additional c.US$20 million to provide increased capital support for the Group, including the
continual development of underground mining operations at the Yanfolila Mine, Mali.

In October 2023, SMK drew down on CFA 9,000,000,000 (approximately $15,000,000 before any
fees) of this refinancing package. This facility is available for a 5-year period from draw down date
with an initial principal deferral period of 6 months from first draw down.

The remainder of this refinancing package is expected to be fully drawn down by 31 December
2023.

d. Coris Overdraft

In December 2022 SMK and Coris Bank agreed on an overdraft facility of CFA 5,200,000,000 (circa
$8.5 million). This Overdraft Facility carries an interest rate of 9% per annum and remains available
twelve months from date of renewal.

The renewal discussions for this overdraft facility are at an advanced stage and expected to be
finalised by the end of December 2023.

e. Coris Bank Guarantees

Further SMK has provided guarantees of up to CFA 2,5000,000 (circa $4,000,000) to a number of
key suppliers, which is backed by Coris Bank
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Coris Bank Guinea Debt Facility

On 4 November 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, Kouroussa Gold Mine SA (“KGM”) entered into a
senior secured term debt facility with Coris Bank International (“Coris”) for $30,000,000. This amount
was also fully drawn down in 2022. The debt facility has the following key terms:

– A 4-year term.

– Interest at 8.5% per annum (payable quarterly).

– Principal deferral period of 18 months from first draw down, payable quarterly thereon.

Security for these borrowings has been granted to Coris Bank over the assets of SMK and KGM,
as well as the share capital of SMK and KGM, a parent company guarantee, and restricted cash
held in an escrow account.

Dated 21 December 2023
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PART 9

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

HUMMINGBIRD RESOURCES PLC
(Incorporated and registered in England and Wales with registered number 05467327)

Notice of the General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that a General Meeting of Hummingbird Resources plc (the “Company”) will
be held at the offices of Gowling WLG (UK) LLP at 4 More London Riverside, London SE1 2AN at
1.00 p.m. on 10 January 2024 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the
following resolutions of which Resolutions 1, 3, 5, 7 and 9 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions
and Resolutions 2, 4, 6 and 8 will be proposed as special resolutions. Only the Independent
Shareholders (as defined in the Company’s circular to shareholders of which this Notice of General
Meeting forms part (the “Circular”)) shall be entitled to vote on Resolutions 9.

Ordinary Resolution
1. THAT, subject to and conditional on the passing of Resolution 9, the Directors of the Company

be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised and empowered in accordance
with Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) to allot shares in the Company and
grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the Company up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £1,425,224.75 pursuant to the CIG Second Tranche Subscription
(as defined in the Circular) provided that this authority shall expire (unless renewed, varied or
revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of this Resolution. The authority granted by this resolution shall be in
addition to the existing authority to allot shares in the Company and to grant rights to
subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company previously granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2023 pursuant to
section 551 of the Act.

Special Resolution
2. THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing of resolutions 1 and 9, the Directors be

and they are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 570 of the Act to allot equity securities
(within the meaning of Section 560(1) of the Act) in the capital of the Company for cash
pursuant to the authority conferred on them in accordance with Section 551 of the Act by
resolution 1 as if Section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to such allotment provided that this
power shall be limited to the allotment up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,425,224.75
pursuant to the CIG Second Tranche Subscription provided that this authority shall expire
(unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 6
calendar months from the date of the passing of this Resolution. The authority granted by this
resolution shall be in addition to the existing authority to allot equity securities previously
granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2023
pursuant to section 551 of the Act.

Ordinary Resolution
3. THAT, subject to and conditional on the passing of Resolutions 1, 2 and 9, the Directors of the

Company be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised and empowered in
accordance with Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) to allot shares in the
Company and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the
Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £139,875.60 pursuant to the Second Tranche
Subscription (as defined in the Circular) provided that this authority shall expire (unless
renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 6 calendar
months from the date of the passing of this Resolution. The authority granted by this resolution
shall be in addition to the existing authority to allot shares in the Company and to grant rights
to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company previously granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2023 pursuant to
section 551 of the Act.
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Special Resolution
4. THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing of resolutions 1, 2 , 3 and 9 the Directors

be and they are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 570 of the Act to allot equity
securities (within the meaning of Section 560(1) of the Act) in the capital of the Company for
cash pursuant to the authority conferred on them in accordance with Section 551 of the Act by
resolution 1 as if Section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to such allotment provided that this
power shall be limited to the allotment up to an aggregate nominal amount of £139,875.60
pursuant to the Second Tranche Subscription provided that this authority shall expire (unless
renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 6 calendar
months from the date of the passing of this Resolution. The authority granted by this resolution
shall be in addition to the existing authority to allot equity securities previously granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2023 pursuant to
section 551 of the Act.

Ordinary Resolution
5. THAT, subject to and conditional on the passing of resolutions 1, 2 and 9 the Directors of the

Company be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised and empowered in
accordance with Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) to allot shares in the
Company and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the
Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £355,156.79 pursuant to the Open Offer (as
defined in the Circular) provided that this authority shall expire (unless renewed, varied or
revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of this Resolution. The authority granted by this resolution shall be in
addition to the existing authority to allot shares in the Company and to grant rights to
subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company previously granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2023 pursuant to
section 551 of the Act.

Special Resolution
6. THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing of resolution resolutions 1, 2, 5 and 9 the

Directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 570 of the Act to allot equity
securities (within the meaning of Section 560(1) of the Act) in the capital of the Company for
cash pursuant to the authority conferred on them in accordance with Section 551 of the Act by
resolution 1 as if Section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to such allotment provided that this
power shall be limited to the allotment up to an aggregate nominal amount of £355,156.79
pursuant to the Open Offer provided that this authority shall expire (unless renewed, varied or
revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 6 calendar months from the
date of the passing of this Resolution. The authority granted by this resolution shall be in
addition to the existing authority to allot equity securities previously granted to the Directors at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2023 pursuant to section 551 of
the Act.

Ordinary Resolution
7. That, subject to the passing of Resolutions 1, 2 and 9 the directors be generally and

unconditionally authorised to allot Relevant Securities (as defined in the notes to this Notice):

(a) comprising equity securities (as defined by section 560 of the Act) of ordinary shares of
1p each in the capital of the Company (“Ordinary Shares”) up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £5,550,141 (such amount to be reduced by the nominal amount of any
Relevant Securities allotted under paragraph 7(b) below) in connection with an offer by
way of a rights issue:

a. to holders of Ordinary Shares in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to
their respective holdings; and

b. to holders of other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or
as the directors otherwise consider necessary,

but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record
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dates, legal or practical problems in or under the laws of any territory or the requirements
of any regulatory body or stock exchange; and

(b) in any other case, up to an aggregate nominal amount of £2,775,071 (such amount to be
reduced by the nominal amount of any equity securities allotted under
paragraph 7(a) above in excess of £2,775,071),

provided that this authority shall, unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company, expire
on the date which is 18 months after the date on which this resolution is passed or, if earlier,
the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company save that the Company may,
before such expiry, make offers or agreements which would or might require Relevant
Securities to be allotted and the directors may allot Relevant Securities in pursuance of such
offer or agreement notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this resolution has expired.

This resolution is in addition to the authorities granted by Resolutions 1, 3 and 5, but revokes
and replaces all other unexercised authorities previously granted to the directors to allot
Relevant Securities but without prejudice to any allotment of shares or grant of rights already
made, offered or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities

Special Resolution
8. That, subject to the passing of Resolutions 1, 2, 7 and 9 the directors be and are hereby

empowered, pursuant to section 570 of the Act, to allot equity securities (as defined by section
560 of the Act) of Ordinary Shares for cash, either pursuant to the authority conferred by
resolution 7 or by way of a sale of treasury shares, as if section 561(1) of the Act did not
apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to:

(a) the allotment of equity securities pursuant to an offer or issue by way of rights, open offer
or other pre-emptive offer to the holders of Ordinary Shares in proportion (as nearly as
may be practicable) to their respective holdings and to holders of other equity securities
as required by the rights of those securities or as the directors otherwise consider
necessary, but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record
dates, legal or practical problems in or under the laws of any territory or the requirements
of any regulatory body or stock exchange; and

(b) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 8(a) above) of equity securities up to
an aggregate nominal amount of £832,521.

The power granted by this resolution will expire on the date which is 18 months after the date
on which this resolution is passed or, if earlier, the conclusion of the Company’s next annual
general meeting (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company prior to or on such date)
save that the Company may, before such expiry make offers or agreements which would or
might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot
equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power
conferred by this resolution has expired.

This resolution is in addition to the authorities granted by Resolutions 2, 4 and 6, but revokes
and replaces all other unexercised powers previously granted to the directors to allot equity
securities as if section 561(1) of the Act did not apply but without prejudice to any allotment of
equity securities already made or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities.
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Ordinary Resolution
9. That the waiver granted by the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers of the obligation that would

otherwise arise on Coris Invest Group SA (CIG) to make a general offer to the shareholders of
the Company pursuant to Rule 9 of the Takeover Code as a result of the issue of 142,522,475
new Ordinary Shares in accordance with a subscription agreement entered into between the
Company (1) and CIG (2), as described in the Circular be and is hereby approved.

Dated 21 December 2023

By Order of the Board

Tracey Fung
Company Secretary

Registered office:
49-63 Spencer Street
Hockley
Birmingham
West Midlands
B18 6DE
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Notes
1. The arrangements for attendance and voting at the General Meeting are explained in the

Chair’s letter in Part 1 of this document. Any changes to the General Meeting arrangements
will be communicated to shareholders before the General Meeting through our
website: www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk.

2. A member is entitled to appoint a proxy, who need not be a member to exercise all or any of
the member’s rights to attend, speak and vote at the meeting, if attendance is permitted. A
proxy form which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions
accompanies this notice. If you do not have a proxy form and believe that you should have
one, or if you require additional forms, please contact Link Group:

a. by post at Link Group, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL;

b. by telephone 0371 664 0321 if calling from the UK, or +44 (0) 371 664 0321 if calling
from overseas. Lines are open between 9:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m., Monday to Friday
(excluding public holidays in England and Wales); or

c. by email at shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk.

3. You can vote by proxy either:

a. by logging on to www.signalshares.com and following the instructions;

b. if you need help with voting online, please contact our Registrar, Link Group,
on 0371 664 0321 if calling from the UK, or +44 (0) 371 664 0321 if calling from outside
of the UK, or email Link at shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk.

c. in the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service in accordance with the procedures set out below;

d. by post at Link Group, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL.

To be valid, proxy votes must be received no later than 1.00 p.m. on 8 January 2024.

4. If you return more than one proxy appointment, the appointment received last by the Registrar
before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence. You are advised to read
the terms and conditions of use carefully. Electronic communication facilities are open to all
shareholders and those who use them will not be disadvantaged.

5. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service may do so for the Meeting (and any adjournment of the Meeting) by using
the procedures described in the CREST Manual (available from www.euroclear.com/site/public/
EUI). CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

6. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the
appropriate CREST message (a ‘CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & International Limited’s specifications and must contain the
information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message
must be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s agent (ID RA10) by 11.00 a.m. on
8 January 2024. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to mean the time (as
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST application host) from
which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner
prescribed by CREST. After this time, any change of instructions to proxies appointed through
CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

7. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers
should note that Euroclear UK & International Limited does not make available special
procedures in CREST for any particular message. Normal system timings and limitations will,
therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of
the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal
member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that
his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to
ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time.
In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting
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system providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
practical limitations of the CREST system and timings. The Company may treat as invalid a
CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

8. Any corporation which is a shareholder can appoint one or more corporate representatives
who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a shareholder provided that no more than
one corporate representative exercises powers in relation to the same shares.

9. To change your proxy instructions simply submit a new proxy appointment using the methods
set out above. Note that the cut-off time for receipt of proxy appointments (see above) also
apply in relation to amended instructions; any amended proxy appointment received after the
relevant cut-off time will be disregarded.

If you submit more than one valid proxy appointment, the appointment received last before the
latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.

10. In order to revoke a proxy instruction you will need to inform the Company by sending a
signed hard copy notice clearly stating your intention to revoke your proxy appointment to Link
Group, PXS1, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL. In the case of a member
which is a company, the revocation notice must be executed under its common seal or signed
on its behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney for the company. Any power of
attorney or any other authority under which the revocation notice is signed (or a duly certified
copy of such power or authority) must be included with the revocation notice.

In either case, the revocation notice must be received by the Company no later than no later
than 1.00 p.m. on 8 January 2024.

If you attempt to revoke your proxy appointment but the revocation is received after the time
specified then your proxy appointment will remain valid.

In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a
proxy, only the appointment submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is
determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s
Register of Members in respect of the joint holding (the first named being the most senior).

11. A vote withheld is not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be counted in the
calculation of votes for or against the resolution. If no voting indication is given, your proxy will
vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote (or abstain from voting)
as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is put before the Meeting.

12. As at 20 December 2023 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this
document), the Company’s issued share capital consisted of 640,495,504 Ordinary Shares of
£0.01 each and which each carry one vote. Therefore, the total voting rights in the Company
as at on 20 December 2023 are 640,495,504.

13. Only those shareholders registered in the Company’s register of members at the record date,
being:

a. close of business on 19 December 2023; or

b. if this meeting is adjourned, at close of business on the day two days prior to the
adjourned meeting,

shall be entitled to vote at the meeting. Changes to the register of members after the relevant
deadline shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend and vote at the
meeting.

14. Except as provided above, members who have general queries about the Meeting should
contact enquiries@hummingbirdresources.co.uk (no other methods of communication will be
accepted).

You may not use any electronic address provided either:

a. in this notice of general meeting; or

b. in any related documents (including an electronic or hard copy proxy form), to
communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.
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15. A copy of this Notice, and other information required by Section 311A of the Companies
Act 2006 (including the Company’s Articles of Association), can be found on the Company’s
website at www.hummingbirdresources.co.uk.

16. Copies of the Company’s Articles of Association and Directors service agreements and letters
of appointment will be available for inspection at the General Meeting.

Relevant Securities means:

• Shares in the Company other than shares allotted pursuant to:

○ an employee share scheme (as defined by section 1166 of the Act);

○ a right to subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself
constituted a Relevant Security; or

○ a right to convert securities into shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself
constituted a Relevant Security.

• Any right to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the Company other than
rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares allotted pursuant to an employee
share scheme (as defined by section 1166 of the Act). References to the allotment of Relevant
Securities in the resolution include the grant of such rights.
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